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Financial Highlights
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		  2008	 2007	 2006	 2005	 2004

Selected Results of Operations
   Interest income	 $    50,765	 $    48,900	 $    43,177	 $    33,837	 $    26,166
   Interest expense	 23,474	 24,474	 19,432	 11,603	 7,008
   Net interest income	 27,291	 24,426	 23,745	 22,234	 19,158
   Provision for loan losses	 4,500	 1,550	 1,550	 1,850	 1,175
   Noninterest income	 2,694	 5,940	 7,638	 8,190	 7,629
   Noninterest expense	 22,939	 22,113	 21,045	 18,676	 17,230
   Provision for income taxes 	 616	 1,978	 2,943	 3,688	 3,052
   Net income	 1,930	 4,725	 5,845	 6,210	 5,330

Per Share Data
   Net income per common share (basic)	 $        0.26	 $        0.65	 $        0.81	 $        0.88	 $        0.76
   Net income per common share (diluted)	 0.25	 0.63	 0.77	 0.83	 0.71
   Book value per common share	 6.99	 6.70	 6.34	 5.68	 5.10
   Market value per common share	 3.90	 8.10	 13.34	 12.10	 10.53
   Cash dividends declared on common shares	 0.10	 0.19	 0.18	 0.16	 0.12

Selected Balance Sheet Data
   Assets	 $  898,310	 $  752,196	 $  694,106	 $  614,172	 $  515,417
   Loans	 685,946	 590,132	 507,690	 448,567	 373,580
   Allowance for loan losses	 10,326	 8,383	 7,624	 6,892	 5,856
   Securities	 149,509	 98,591	 105,457	 104,160	 100,357
   Deposits	 707,117	 601,268	 566,465	 521,860	 433,898
   Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures	 120,465	 100,465	 79,744	 49,279	 44,279
   Shareholders’ equity	 67,803	 47,260	 46,228	 40,929	 35,868
   Common shares outstanding	 7,119	 7,063	 7,296	 7,206	 7,023
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Year ended December 31, 
Amounts in thousands, except per share data
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Letter from the Chairman and President

	 Now is the time of opportunity.  Now is the time 
for community banking.  While the large banks are in 
retreat mode, community banks now have an unprec-
edented opportunity to grow market share.  Unlike 
the big banks, community banks have not engaged in 
subprime lending practices.  Unlike the big banks, we 
know our customers, and our customers know us.  
Our business model is to foster and grow relation-
ships.  Now is the time to underscore the advantages 
of community banking.
	 Based on current economic conditions, it is clear 
that 2009 is going to be another challenging year.  
Notwithstanding the severe recession, the fundamen-
tals of Unity Bank continue to be sound.  We have 
remained focused on our strategic plan of deliver-
ing extremely competitive financial products, with a 
focus on building relationships; this is True Community 
Banking.  Although the performance of the Company 
has been impacted by the economy, we have continued 
to add products, to improve on our delivery channels 
and to effectively grow market share.  In 2008, we 
grew total deposits over 17 percent and total assets 
over 19 percent.  We are looking beyond tomorrow 
and looking forward to our future.
	 Years of excessive debt and over-consumption 
by both households and businesses came to a crash-
ing halt in 2008, and the accelerated deleveraging will 
continue in 2009.  The magnitude of the retrenchment 
has thrust the economy into the deepest recession 
in over 50 years.  The impact of the economic crisis 
has eroded the values of the equity markets, with 
the financial services sector bearing the brunt of the 
downturn.  
	 Since inception, Unity has been recognized as a 

leader in Small Business Administration (“SBA”) lend-
ing.  The SBA program makes credit available to small 
businesses when conventional funding is not available.   
Historically, the program has served us very well, 
providing significant fee income on the sale of loans 
into the secondary market.  However, the world has 
changed; the secondary market has all but vanished, 
and it is now time to revisit our business model.   
	 This economic crisis has brought us focus.  We are 
now changing course.  Going forward, SBA loans will 
simply be a product that will allow us to lend to busi-
nesses in our communities.  We will continue to make 
SBA loans, however it will be on a much smaller scale.  
We are going to use the SBA program as a product 
that is available for business lending in the communi-
ties we serve. It will no longer be a material line of 
business.
	 Yes, these times are indeed difficult, however we 
believe that Unity will be a stronger institution as a 
result.  We are continuing to invest in our products 
and technology.  This year, check and items processing 
were brought in house; transactions are now com-
pletely digital; deposit products are available online; 
our website has been upgraded; phone and communi-
cations systems have been significantly improved.  We 
will continue to invest in our infrastructure to stay 
competitive and to provide the safest and most secure 
delivery channels for customers. 
	 This  was a year of tremendous growth for Unity 
Bank.  We continued to grow the Company and 
increased our consumer and business relationships, 
while successfully maintaining expense control.  This 
year, we have made significant reductions in staffing 
levels in response to our strategic SBA shift and in our 

“It is now time for us to 
reassess our business 
model. It is time to 
refocus on Community 
Banking.”
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core processing expenses.  Unfortunately, the indus-
try has and will continue to feel the costs associated 
with increases in FDIC insurance premiums. 
	 As previously reported we closed our Bridge-
water facility this year as we did not see long-term 
growth opportunities in that location.   Rest assured, 
we are not in a contraction mode.  Now that real 
estate values are more affordable, we believe this is 
a good time to start our search for new locations in 
our contiguous markets.  We are hopeful that branch 
sites will come available due to the recent consoli-
dation in the industry.   We are committed to our 
expansion.  Now is the time of opportunity. 
	 In December of 2008, Unity issued $20.6 million 
of perpetual preferred stock to the U.S. Department 
of the Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program.  
The capital raised under this program has significantly 
increased our capital levels.  We intend to fully comply 
with the spirit of the program and reinvest these 
funds to support future loan growth in the markets 
that we serve.
	 The Unity Commandments define our corporate 
culture.  We recognize that to be successful in this 
highly competitive business, it is critical that our em-
ployees are aligned to our commandments and that 
we continually reinforce our principles.  We believe 
these commandments speak for themselves.  Hire 
the best employees, train them well, and keep them 
highly motivated.  With great employees providing the 
highest level of service for our customers, increased 
profits of the bank are sure to follow.  Banking is a 
commodity business, the only way to grow market 
share is to provide excellent service on a consistent 
basis.  

	

David D. Dallas
Chairman	

James A. Hughes
President/CEO

“The lines of business have 
been redrawn. We intend to 
react accordingly. Our size 
is our advantage. We are 
nimble.”

	 Our vision and strategy for Unity has not changed, 
we are committed to exceptional customer service, 
personal attention, local decision-making and concern 
for the financial well-being of our customers and 
shareholders.  We and the employees of Unity are 
committed to achieving our financial goals and look 
forward to the challenges ahead.
	 The Board of Directors, management and staff 
thank you and we continue to appreciate your loyalty 
and support.



Unity Bank, growing with you!
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We began 
as First 
Community 
Bank with two 
branches in 
1991.  Today, 
as Unity Bank, 
we have sixteen 
branches 
operating in 
five counties in 
New Jersey and one county in Pennsylvania.  All six 
counties we serve have grown in population1, and we 
have grown with them.

We have been there to provide jobs in these 
growing communities; we began with less than thirty 
employees and today we have over one hundred and 
sixty.  Our investment in our communities has also 
grown.  With consistent loan growth, today we have 
close to $700 million dollars in loans. From local 
florists, to restaurants, to homeowners – Unity loans 
are helping over 3,000 businesses and consumers 
reach their dreams.  As a preferred SBA (Small 
Business Administration) lender, we are committed 
to helping small business owners.  Over the years, 

the SBA has consistently ranked us in the top five 
lenders in New Jersey and the top 40 nationally.

We take pride 
in helping our 
customers 
reach their 
financial goals 
by providing 
the products 
and personal 
services they 
need.  From 
checking 
accounts to 
mortgages, we 
take the time 
to listen to 
our customers 
and fulfill their 
needs.  Our customers put their trust in us.  This 
shows in our deposit growth, with over $700 million 
in current deposits serving almost 20,000 account 
holders.

1  U.S. census, http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/

First Unity Bank branch,  Annandale, NJ

Current Corporate Office Building, Clinton, NJ

Unity Bank
Commandments

1Treat all employees and
customers with dignity 
and respect

2Provide the highest level
of service to our customers

3Increase the profits of 
the bank

4Always do the right thing

The Unity Bank Commandments are the root 
of our success.  These values guide us at every 
level of the Bank.  They ensure that people, our 
customers  and our employees, are always the 
focus.  These values also ensure the stability and 
soundness of the Bank which allow us to continue 
to grow and provide exceptional banking to our 
communities.



Growing Our Most Important Asset

Christopher 
Bono joined 
the Unity Team 
in 1999 as a  
part-time teller 
while attending 
college studying 
Marketing. 
His initiative 

and superior work ethic gained him a promotion 
to full-time Customer Service Representative. 
Chris embraced his new duties while continuing his 
education at night to receive his Associate’s Degree.   

In 2001, he was promoted to Assistant Manager of 
our Scotch Plains Branch. Chris brought passion 
and drive to the position and a focus on community 
involvement.  His success building business contacts 
and working with civic organizations earned him 
promotion to Branch Manager, Assistant Vice-
President, in 2005. In 2006, Chris was transferred 

to the younger South Plainfield Branch to build a 
cohesive team of employees and establish lasting 
deposit relationships. Chris has lead the branch to 
success with a 15 percent increase in deposits in two 
years. 

Chris is always looking for growth and improvement 
opportunities. In 2007, Chris completed seven 
months of management training provided by Unity 
in an on-site continuing education program taught 
by financial industry educators, FTC. In 2008, Chris 
was recognized for his increasing contributions to 
the company and promoted to Vice President and 
Market Leader. In his role as Market Leader he 
continues to manage the South Plainfield Branch 
while mentoring the Scotch Plains and Springfield 
Branch Relationship Managers. He is currently 
working on his Bachelors’ Degree in Organizational 
Leadership through the bank’s tuition reimbursement 
program.

5

growing with you!

Our employees are our most valuable asset.  At Unity Bank, we strive to develop a culture that respects all employees as individuals and 
provides an environment for them to flourish.  At all levels, training, coaching and continuing education are encouraged and supported.

Employee Spotlight
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Board of Directors & Senior Management

Board of Directors

David D. Dallas
Chairman of the Board, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
CEO of Dallas Group of America, Inc.

Allen Tucker
Vice Chairman, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
President of Tucker Enterprises

Mark S. Brody
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
Managing Member, Financial Planning Analysts, LLC
New York State Licensed Physician

Wayne Courtright
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
Retired, Former Banker

Robert H. Dallas, II
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
President, Dallas Group of America, Inc.

James A. Hughes
President/CEO and Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. 
& Unity Bank

Charles S. Loring
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
Certified Public Accountant

Peter E. Maricondo
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
Financial Consultant

Raj Patel
Director, Unity Bancorp, Inc. & Unity Bank
President, Millennium Ventures

Donald E. Souders, Jr.
Director, Unity Bank
Attorney, Florio Perrucci

Senior Management

James A. Hughes
President
Chief Executive Officer

Alan J. Bedner
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Janice Bolomey
Senior Vice President
Director of Sales

Laureen S. Cook
Vice President
Controller

Michael F. Downes
Executive Vice President
Chief Lending Officer

Keith Fenstermaker
Senior Vice President
Chief Credit Officer

David Hensley
Senior Vice President
Senior Commercial Lender

John J. Kauchak
Executive Vice President
Chief Deposit Officer

Marc Sovelove
Senior Vice President
Chief Retail Lending Officer

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

We are saddened by the recent passing of our Director Emeritus, Samuel 
Stothoff. Sam was one of the founders of Unity Bank, formerly First 
Community Bank, and he was a Director from its inception in 1991 
until his retirement on December 31, 2004. Mr. Stothoff was a very 
well-known businessman in and around the Flemington, New Jersey, 
community. He was a wonderful individual, who had a kind and gentle 
nature and was loved by all who knew him.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis of
Financial Condition & Results of Operations

	 The following discussion and analysis should be read 
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and the notes relating thereto included herein. When 
necessary, reclassifications have been made to prior 
period’s data for purposes of comparability with current 
period presentation.

Critical Accounting Policies and 
Estimates

	 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations” is based upon the 
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, which 
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these 
financial statements requires the Company to make 
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Note 1 to the 
Company’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2008, contains a 
summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies. 
Management believes the Company’s policies with respect 
to the methodology for the determination of the allowance 
for loan losses, income taxes, servicing assets, cash flow 
hedges and other-than-temporary impairment on securities 
involves a higher degree of complexity and requires 
management to make difficult and subjective judgments, 
which often require assumptions or estimates about 
highly uncertain matters. Changes in these judgments, 
assumptions or estimates could materially impact results of 
operations. These critical policies are periodically reviewed 
with the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Allowance for Loan Losses
	 The  provision for loan losses is based upon 
management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance 
for loan losses, including an assessment of known and 
inherent risks in the portfolio, giving consideration to the 
size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual loan 
loss experience, level of delinquencies, detailed analysis 
of individual loans for which full collectability may not be 
assured, the existence and estimated net realizable value of 
any underlying collateral and guarantees securing the loans, 
and current economic and market conditions.  Although 
management uses the best information available, the level 
of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate, which 
is subject to significant judgment and short-term change.  
Various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their 
examination process, periodically review the Company’s 

allowance for loan losses.  Such agencies may require the 
Company to make additional provisions for loan losses 
based upon information available to them at the time 
of their examination.  Furthermore, the majority of the 
Company’s loans are secured by real estate.  Accordingly, 
the ability to collect a substantial portion of the carrying 
value of the Company’s loan portfolio is susceptible to 
changes in local real estate market conditions and may 
be adversely affected should real estate values continue 
to decline.  Future adjustments to the allowance for loan 
losses may be necessary due to economic, operating, 
regulatory and other conditions beyond the Company’s 
control.

Income Taxes 
	 The Company accounts for income taxes according to 
the asset and liability method.  Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax basis.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates 
applicable to taxable income for the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled.  The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of 
a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period 
that includes the enactment date.  Valuation reserves are 
established against certain deferred tax assets when it is 
more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not 
be realized.  Increases or decreases in the valuation reserve 
are charged or credited to the income tax provision.
	 When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that 
some positions taken would be sustained upon examination 
by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to 
uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the 
amount of the position that ultimately would be sustained.  
The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial 
statements in the period during which, based on all available 
evidence, management believes it is more likely than not 
that the position will be sustained upon examination, 
including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if 
any.  The evaluation of a tax position taken is considered by 
itself and not offset or aggregated with other positions.  Tax 
positions that meet the more likely than not recognition 
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit 
that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon 
settlement with the applicable taxing authority.  The portion 
of benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds 
the amount measured as described above is reflected as a 
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liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying 
balance sheet along with any associated interest and 
penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities 
upon examination.
	 Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized 
tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense on the 
income statement. 
	 For additional information on income taxes, see Note 
16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Servicing Assets 
	 Servicing assets represent the allocated value of 
retained servicing rights on loans sold.  Servicing assets 
are expensed in proportion to, and over the period of, 
estimated net servicing revenues.  Impairment is evaluated 
based on stratifying the underlying financial assets by date 
of origination and term.  Fair value is determined using 
prices for similar assets with similar characteristics, when 
available, or based upon discounted cash flows using 
market-based assumptions.  Any impairment, if temporary, 
would be reported as a valuation allowance. 
	 For additional information on servicing assets, see 
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities 
	 The Company uses derivative instruments, such as 
interest rate swaps, to manage interest rate risk.  The 
Company recognizes all derivative instruments at fair 
value as either assets or liabilities in other assets or other 
liabilities.  The accounting for changes in the fair value of 
a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been 
designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.  
For derivatives not designated as an accounting hedge, the 
gain or loss is recognized in trading noninterest income.
	 For those derivative instruments that are designated 
and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company must 
designate the hedging instrument, based on the exposure 
being hedged, as a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge or 
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.  The 
Company does not have any fair value hedges or hedges of 
foreign operations.
	 The Company formally documents the relationship 
between the hedging instruments and hedged item, as 
well as the risk management objective and strategy before 
undertaking a hedge.  For hedging relationships in which 
effectiveness is measured, the Company formally assesses, 
both at inception and on an ongoing basis, if the derivatives 
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or 
cash flows of the hedged item.  If it is determined that the 
derivative instrument is not highly effective as a hedge, 
hedge accounting is discontinued.
	 For derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges, 
the effective portion of the gain or loss on derivatives is 
reported as a component of other comprehensive income 
or loss.  The change in fair value of any ineffective portion of 
the hedging derivative is recognized immediately in earnings.
	 Hedge accounting discontinues when it is determined 

that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge; 
the derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; or 
the derivative is no longer designated as a fair value or cash 
flow hedge or it is no longer probable that the forecasted 
transaction will occur by the end of the originally specified 
time period.  If the Company determines that the derivative 
no longer qualifies as a cash flow or fair value hedge and 
therefore hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative 
will continue to be recorded on the balance sheet at its fair 
value with changes in fair value included in current earnings.   
	 For additional information on derivative instruments, 
see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
	 Management evaluates securities for other-than-tempo-
rary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more fre-
quently when economic or market concern warrants such 
evaluation.  Consideration is given to (1) the length of time 
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than 
cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of 
the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to 
retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time suf-
ficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.  
	 For additional information on other-than-temporary 
impairment, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments. 
 
Overview
 
	 Unity Bancorp, Inc. (the “Parent Company”) is a 
bank holding company incorporated in New Jersey and 
registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 
1956, as amended. Its wholly-owned subsidiary, Unity 
Bank (the “Bank,” or when consolidated with the Parent 
Company, the “Company”) is chartered by the New 
Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. The Bank 
provides a full range of commercial and retail banking 
services through the Internet and its sixteen branch offices 
located in Hunterdon, Middlesex, Somerset, Union and 
Warren counties in New Jersey and Northampton County 
in Pennsylvania. These services include the acceptance 
of demand, savings and time deposits and the extension 
of consumer, real estate, Small Business Administration 
(“SBA”) and other commercial credits.

Results of Operations   

	 The past year has been a period of unprecedented 
financial, credit and capital market stress.  Everyday 
brought about more negative news reporting increased 
turmoil in the financial markets, corporate bankruptcies, 
layoffs, rising unemployment, etc.  The economy was 
and remains under considerable stress today with the 
financial sector being hit the hardest.  Factors such as 
lack of liquidity in the markets, continued fall-out from 
the subprime mortgage crisis, asset “fair market” value 
write-downs, capital adequacy concerns and credit quality 
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concerns have resulted in a lack of confidence by the 
markets in the financial industry this year.
	 During the third quarter, this lack of confidence 
became so strained that Congress intervened with its 
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act (the “Act”) to 
address the dysfunctional markets.  This Act authorized 
the Troubled Asset Relief Program (“TARP”) which 
provided capital to financial institutions and purchased 
troubled assets from institutions.  The U.S. Department of 
Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”) authorized 
the Treasury to purchase newly issued preferred stock 
and common stock purchase warrants from financial 
institutions or their holding companies. In addition, the Act 
authorized the temporary increase in the FDIC insurance 
limit to $250 thousand from $100 thousand per account.  
The FDIC also implemented a program to insure all 
deposits held in noninterest-bearing transactional accounts, 
regardless of amount, at institutions which do not opt out 
of the program and which pay an additional assessment to 
the FDIC.  These enhanced deposit insurance programs 
are scheduled to expire at year-end in 2009.  These 
governmental actions were designed to rebuild confidence 
in the financial markets, increase liquidity and strengthen 
the financial sector.
	 In December 2008, the Company sold $20.6 million of 
preferred stock to the U.S. Department of Treasury under 
the Capital Purchase Program and issued warrants to 
purchase 764,778 shares of common stock at an exercise 
price of $4.05. Unity has been well-capitalized, however, 
due to the turbulence within the economy, the Company 
believed that participation in this program was prudent and 
in the best interests of its community and shareholders.
	 Unity’s 2008 results were affected by the economic 
downturn due to higher loan loss provisions, security 
write-downs on Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation (“FHLMC”) preferred stock and the collapse 
of the secondary market for SBA loan sales:  

	 The provision for loan losses increased $3.0 •	
million year over year due to an increase in 
inherent credit risk within the loan portfolio. 

	 Earnings were impacted by the realized •	
losses and other-than-temporary impairment 
charges (“OTTI”) on callable FHLMC perpetual 
preferred securities of $1.7 million. This consisted 
of OTTI charges of $1.2 million and losses on 
sales of $469 thousand.  In addition, OTTI charges 
of approximately $300 thousand were recorded 
on a pooled trust preferred security and two bank 
equity securities during the year.

	 Secondary markets for many types of financial •	
assets, including the guaranteed portion of 
SBA loans, have closed down or become very 
restrictive in response to the credit crisis. 
Consequently, Unity held all current production 
of SBA loans in portfolio and did not sell any 
loans in the fourth quarter of the year.  In 
addition, late in the third quarter Unity closed its 

SBA origination offices outside its New Jersey, 
New York and Pennsylvania primary trade areas. 
Although this will lead to reduced SBA loan 
origination volume and premiums on sales for the 
foreseeable future, the cost savings are prudent 
given the current market environment. 

	 Despite this challenging operating environment, 
the Company’s performance included the following 
accomplishments:

	 Total assets increased 19.4 percent to $898.3 •	
million,

	 Continued market share expansion as total loans •	
increased 16.2 percent from one year ago, 

	 Total deposits increased 17.6 percent from one •	
year ago, and

	 The Company remained well-capitalized.•	
  

	 Net income for the year ended December 31, 2008 
was $1.9 million compared to $4.7 million for 2007.  
Performance ratios included:

2008 2007
Earnings per basic share (1) $ 0.26 $ 0.65
Earnings per diluted share (1) $ 0.25 $ 0.63
Return on average assets 0.23% 0.66%
Return on average equity (2) 3.72% 10.11%
Efficiency ratio 71.90% 71.48%

Defined as net income adjusted for dividends accrued and (1)	
accretion of discount on perpetual preferred stock divided by 
weighted average shares outstanding.
Defined as net income adjusted for dividends accrued and (2)	
accretion of discount on perpetual preferred stock divided by 
average shareholders’ equity.

Drivers of reduced earnings include:
	 A reduced net interest margin,•	
	 An increased provision for loan losses,•	
	 A lower level of net gains on reduced SBA loan •	

sales due to lower premiums on sales in the 
dysfunctional credit markets,

	 Impairment charges on callable FHLMC perpetual •	
preferred stock, and

	 Higher deposit insurance expense due to •	
increased FDIC assessment rates. 
	

Net Interest Income

	 The primary source of income for the Company is 
net interest income, the difference between the interest 
earned on earning assets such as investments and loans, 
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings.  Factors 
that impact the Company’s net interest income include the 
interest rate environment, the volume and mix of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the 
competitive nature of the Company’s market place.  
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	 Since December 31, 2007, the Federal Open Market 
Committee has lowered interest rates 400 basis points 
in an attempt to stimulate economic activity.  Over this 
period, the Fed Funds target rate fell to 0.25 percent 
and the Prime rate fell to 3.25 percent.  These decreases 
have resulted in lower yields on earning assets as well as 
lower funding costs which have combined with a shift in 
funding mix to reduce net interest margin.  In addition, 
the competition for high quality loans and deposits, and 
customer migration from lower to higher rate deposit 
products has impacted the level of net interest margins 
across the financial industry.   
	 During 2008, tax-equivalent interest income increased 
$1.9 million or 3.8 percent to $50.9 million.  This increase 
was driven by a higher volume of interest-earning assets 
despite the lower average yield on these assets:

Of the $1.9 million increase in interest income on •	
a tax-equivalent basis, $7.2 million can be attrib-
uted to the increase in average interest-earning 
assets partially offset by a $5.3 million decrease 
due to reduced yields on the interest-earning 
assets.  

	 The average volume of interest-earning assets •	
increased $102.7 million to $781.2 million in 2008 
compared to $678.5 million in 2007. This was due 
primarily to a $94.9 million increase in average 
loans as all loan products increased.  

	 The yield on interest-earning assets decreased 71 •	
basis points to 6.52 percent in 2008 due to the 
lower overall interest rate environment compared 
to 2007.  Yields on variable rate instruments, such 
as SBA loans, commercial loans and consumer 
home equity lines of credit, decreased due to 
these lower market rates while the average yield 
on residential mortgage loans increased 12 basis 
points to 5.96 percent in 2008. 

	 Total interest expense was $23.5 million in 2008, a 
decrease of $1.0 million or 4.1 percent compared to 2007.  
This decrease was driven by the lower overall interest 
rate environment in 2008 despite the shift in deposit mix 
toward higher priced products:

	 Of the $1.0 million decrease in interest expense •	
in 2008, $5.8 million was attributed to a decrease 
in the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, 
partially offset by a $4.8 million increase due to a 
higher volume of these liabilities. 

	 Interest-bearing liabilities averaged $691.5 mil-•	
lion in 2008, an increase of $103.2 million, or 
17.5 percent, compared to 2007.  The increase in 
interest-bearing liabilities was a result of increases 
in time deposits and borrowed funds, offset in 
part by a decline in interest-bearing demand and 
savings deposits.  Average borrowed funds and 
subordinated debentures increased $23.3 million 
to $108.2 million in 2008 compared to $85.0 mil-
lion in 2007 as these funding sources provided 
favorable pricing compared to alternative sources 
of funds as market rates began to fall.  

		  The average cost of interest-bearing liabilities •	
decreased 77 basis points to 3.39 percent, primar-
ily due to the repricing of deposits and borrow-
ings in a lower interest rate environment.  The 
cost of interest-bearing deposits decreased 76 
basis points to 3.25 percent in 2008 and the cost 
of borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 
decreased 85 basis points to 4.18 percent. 
The lower costs of funding were offset somewhat •	
by the shift in the mix of deposits from lower 
cost savings and interest-bearing demand deposits 
to higher cost time deposits. 

	 Tax-equivalent net interest income amounted to 
$27.5 million in 2008, an increase of $2.9 million, or 11.7 
percent, compared to 2007. Net interest margin decreased 
11 basis points to 3.51 percent for 2008, compared to 
3.62 percent in 2007.  The net interest spread was 3.13 
percent, a 6 basis point increase from 3.07 percent in 
2007.  	
	 The table on pages 12 and 13 reflects the components 
of net interest income, setting forth for the periods 
presented herein: (1) average assets, liabilities and 
shareholders’ equity, (2) interest income earned on 
interest-earning assets and interest expense paid on 
interest-bearing liabilities, (3) average yields earned on 
interest-earning assets and average rates paid on interest-
bearing liabilities, (4) net interest spread (which is the 
average yield on interest-earning assets less the average 
rate on interest-bearing liabilities), and (5) net interest 
income/margin on average earning assets.  Rates/Yields are 
computed on a fully tax-equivalent basis, assuming a federal 
income tax rate of 34 percent.
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2008 2007
Average
Balance

Interest Rate/
Yield

Average
Balance

Interest Rate/
Yield

ASSETS

Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing 

deposits with banks $ 26,686 $ 471 1.76% $   22,290 $ 1,068 4.79%
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 4,353 240 5.51 3,336 258 7.73
Securities:

Available for sale 74,243 3,761 5.07 65,853 3,253 4.94
Held to maturity 31,710 1,654 5.22 37,724 1,986 5.26
Total securities (A) 105,953 5,415 5.11 103,577 5,239 5.06

Loans, net of unearned discount:
SBA 101,430 8,370 8.25 84,185 9,039 10.74
SBA 504 74,617 5,572 7.47 66,393 5,345 8.05
Commercial 308,751 21,424 6.94 275,448 20,393 7.40
Residential mortgage 100,110 5,971 5.96 68,443 3,995 5.84
Consumer 59,291 3,462 5.84 54,789 3,722 6.79
Total loans (A),(B) 644,199 44,799 6.95 549,258 42,494 7.74
Total interest-earning assets $ 781,191 $ 50,925 6.52% $ 678,461 $ 49,059 7.23%

Noninterest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 17,529 13,467
Allowance for loan losses  (9,179) (8,184)
Other assets 31,667 29,304
Total noninterest-earning assets 40,017 34,587

Total Assets $ 821,208 $  713,048

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Interest-bearing liabilities:

Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 84,336 $ 1,468 1.74% $   85,750 $ 1,928 2.25%

Savings deposits 168,784 3,644 2.16 204,214 8,064 3.95
Time deposits 330,174 13,836 4.19 213,407 10,206 4.78
Total interest-bearing deposits 583,294 18,948 3.25 503,371 20,198 4.01
Borrowed funds and subordinated

debentures 108,214 4,526 4.18 84,962 4,276 5.03
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 691,508 $ 23,474 3.39% $ 588,333 $ 24,474 4.16%

Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 78,282 75,581 
Other liabilities 2,531 2,416 
Total noninterest-bearing liabilities 80,813 77,997 
Shareholders’ equity 48,887 46,718 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 821,208 $ 713,048
Net interest spread $ 27,451 3.13% $ 24,585 3.07%
Tax-equivalent basis adjustment (160) (159)
Net interest income $ 27,291 $  24,426 

Net interest margin 3.51% 3.62%

Yields related to securities and loans exempt from federal and state income taxes are stated on a fully tax-equivalent basis.  They are reduced by (A)	
the nondeductible portion of interest expense, assuming a federal tax rate of 34 percent and applicable state tax rates.
The loan averages are stated net of unearned income, and the averages include loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued.  (B)	

Consolidated Average Balance Sheets
(Dollar amounts in thousands - interest amounts and interest rates/yields on a fully tax-equivalent basis.)

For the years ended December 31,



13

200420052006
Average
Balance Interest

Rate/
Yield

Average
Balance Interest

Rate/
Yield

Average
Balance Interest

Rate/
Yield

$ 21,606 $   1,042 4.82% $  17,160 $     572 3.33% $ 15,039 $    193  1.28%
2,340 139 5.94 1,513 76 5.02 1,195 21 1.76

64,134 2,964 4.62  72,695 3,076 4.23  82,096 3,353 4.08 
41,156 2,069 5.03  31,139 1,477 4.74  17,395 867 4.98

105,290 5,033 4.78  103,834 4,553 4.38  99,491 4,220 4.24 

84,113 8,615 10.24  74,369 6,558 8.82  62,853  4,296 6.83 
54,462 4,514 8.29 40,655 3,010 7.40 36,513 2,517 6.89

240,311 17,400 7.24  189,384 13,154 6.95  155,922  10,417 6.68 
59,933 3,305 5.51  62,103  3,318 5.34  50,242  2,712 5.40 
47,652 3,208 6.73  45,707  2,648 5.79  38,979  1,860 4.77 

486,471 37,042 7.61  412,218  28,688 6.96  344,509  21,802 6.33 
$ 615,707 $ 43,256 7.02% $  534,725 $  33,889 6.34% $  460,234 $  26,236 5.70%

12,439  12,661  13,304 
 (7,493)  (6,398)  (5,724)
29,302  24,399  15,603 
34,248  30,662  23,183 

$ 649,955 $ 565,387 $ 483,417 

$  117,730 $ 2,648 2.25% $ 150,420 $  2,605 1.73% $ 188,840 $  2,656 1.41%
183,815 6,948 3.78  130,911  3,164 2.42  49,330  620 1.26 

169,572 7,101 4.19  118,174  3,820 3.23  96,686  2,507 2.59 
471,117 16,697 3.54  399,505  9,589 2.40  334,856  5,783 1.73

55,756 2,735 4.91  46,604  2,014 4.32  29,169  1,225 4.20 
$ 526,873 $ 19,432 3.69% $  446,109 $  11,603 2.60% $  364,025 $  7,008 1.93%

77,747  78,519  85,283 
2,218  2,634  1,445 

79,965  81,153  86,728 
43,117  38,125  32,664 

$ 649,955 $  565,387 $ 483,417 
$ 23,824 3.33% $  22,286  3.74% $  19,228  3.77%

(79)  (52)  (70)
$ 23,745 $  22,234 $  19,158

3.87%  4.17%  4.18%
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The rate volume table below presents an analysis of the 
impact on interest income and expense resulting from 
changes in average volume and rates over the periods 
presented. Changes that are not due to volume or rate 

variances have been allocated proportionally to both, 
based on their relative absolute values. Amounts have been 
computed on a tax-equivalent basis, assuming a federal 
income tax rate of 34 percent.

Year ended December 31, 2008 versus 2007 2007 versus 2006
(Dollar amounts in thousands on a tax-equivalent basis) Increase (Decrease)

Due to change in
Increase (Decrease)

Due to change in
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

Interest Income:
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits $  179 $ (776) $ (597) $ 32 $  (6) $  26
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 67 (85) (18) 70 49 119
Investment securities 104 72 176 (96) 302 206
Net loans 6,818 (4,513) 2,305 4,504 948 5,452
Total interest income $ 7,168 $ (5,302) $ 1,866 $ 4,510 $ 1,293 $ 5,803
Interest Expense:
Interest-bearing demand deposits $  (31) $ (429) $ (460) $ (720) $         - $ (720)
Savings deposits (1,224) (3,196) (4,420) 794 322 1,116
Time deposits 5,016 (1,386) 3,630 2,011 1,094 3,105
Total deposits $ 3,761 $ (5,011) $ (1,250) $ 2,085 $ 1,416 $ 3,501
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 1,048 (798) 250 1,472 69 1,541
Total interest expense $ 4,809 $ (5,809) $ (1,000) $ 3,557 $ 1,485 $ 5,042
Net interest income – fully tax-equivalent $ 2,359 $ 507 $ 2,866 $ 953 $ (192) $ 761
Increase in tax-equivalent adjustment (1 80
Net interest income $  2,865 $ 681

Provision for Loan Losses
	 The provision for loan losses totaled $4.5 million for 
2008, an increase of $3.0 million compared to $1.6 million 
for 2007. 
	 The provision for loan losses is determined based 
on management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the 
allowance for loan losses which is maintained at a level 
that management believes is sufficient to absorb estimated 
probable losses in the loan portfolio as of the balance 
sheet date.  (For additional information, see the section 
titled Allowance for Loan Losses and Unfunded Loan 
Commitments). Management believes the current provision 
is appropriate based on its assessment of the adequacy of 
the allowance for loan losses.

Noninterest Income
	 Historically, Unity has had a strong source of 
noninterest income in the form of gains on the sale of 
its SBA loans.  Under the SBA 7(a) program, the SBA 
guarantees up to 85 percent of the principal of a qualifying 
loan. In the past, the Company would sell the guaranteed 
portion of the loan into the secondary market and retain 
the unguaranteed portion.  However, during 2008, 
pricing in the secondary market for SBA loans began to 
deteriorate in response to the credit crisis.  Consequently, 
Unity held a significant portion of its current production 
of SBA loans. This decision resulted in lower levels 
of noninterest income and will likely continue in the 
foreseeable future. In addition, other-than-temporary 

impairment (“OTTI”) charges and losses realized on the 
sales of securities have significantly reduced noninterest 
income during 2008.
	 Noninterest income was $2.7 million for 2008, a $3.2 
million, or 54.6 percent decrease compared to $5.9 million 
for 2007.  The following table shows the components of 
noninterest income for 2008 and 2007:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 1,393 $ 1,383
Service and loan fee income 1,271 1,607
Gain on sale of SBA loans held for sale, net 1,217 2,399
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 40 52
Bank owned life insurance 210 198
Other-than-temporary impairment charges

on securities (1,540) (607)

Net security (losses) gains (378) 36
Other income 481 872
Total noninterest income $ 2,694 $ 5,940

Although the Company’s deposit base increased •	
from 2007 to 2008, service charges on deposits 
remained relatively flat.  During this period, lower 
levels of overdraft fees were offset by increased 
analysis fees on commercial accounts.
Service and loan fee income decreased as a result •	
of lower prepayment penalties on commercial 
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loans and SBA servicing income. 
		  Net gains on SBA loan sales decreased $1.2 million •	

or 49.3 percent compared to 2007 as a result of 
a lower volume of loans sold and lower premiums 
on the sales due to market conditions.  SBA loan 
sales totaled $24.8 million for the twelve months 
ended December 31, 2008, compared to $41.6 
million for 2007.  As a result of the significantly 
reduced premiums and the absence of liquidity in 
the secondary market for SBA loans resulting from 
the recent credit crisis, the Company closed all 
SBA production offices outside of its New Jersey, 
Pennsylvania and New York footprint late in the 
third quarter. Consequently, management believes 
that net gains on SBA loan sales will remain at 
lower levels or continue to decline for the foresee-
able future.   

		  Gains on the sale of mortgage loans remained •	
relatively flat in 2007 and 2008 as the Company 
chose to hold these loans in its portfolio in 
response to volatility within the market.  Sales 
of mortgage loans totaled $2.6 million and $3.0 
million for 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
In December 2004, the Company purchased $5.0 •	
million of bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) 
to offset the rising costs of employee benefits.  
In 2008, the cash surrender value of the BOLI 
increased $210 thousand compared to $198 
thousand the prior year.

		  OTTI charges on securities consisted of write-•	
downs of approximately $1.2 million on three 
callable FHLMC perpetual preferred securities 
due to the decline in market value of these 
securities and the eventual placement of FHLMC 
in conservatorship that occurred in September of 
2008.  In addition, OTTI charges of approximately 
$300 thousand were taken on a pooled trust 
preferred security and two bank equities during 
the year.  During 2007, an OTTI charge of $607 
thousand was recorded on the same callable 
FHLMC perpetual preferred securities, which the 
Company classified as impaired due to their decline 
in market value and the uncertainty that they 
would recover their $3.9 million book value within 
a reasonable period.  

		  In addition to the OTTI charges listed above, •	
the Company sold approximately $2.1 million in 
book value of the FHLMC securities in 2008 and 
recorded a pretax loss of approximately $469 
thousand on the sales. This loss was partially offset 
by $91 thousand in gains on other sales for a net 
security loss of $378 thousand in 2008.  During 
2007, the Company realized gains on the sales of 
securities of $36 thousand. 

    	Other income totaled $481 thousand and $872 •	
thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The 
decrease in 2008 was primarily due to lower levels 
of loan referral fees.  

Noninterest Expense
	 Total noninterest expense was $22.9 million for 2008, 
an increase of $826 thousand or 3.7 percent over 2007. 
Growth of Unity’s SBA lending franchise during the first 
half of the year, increased professional fees and higher 
FDIC insurance assessment rates contributed to the 
increase in operational expense. 
	 The following table presents a breakdown of 
noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 
2008 and 2007: 
 

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Compensation and benefits $ 11,985 $ 11,446
Occupancy 2,773 2,777
Processing and communications 2,251 2,433
Furniture and equipment 1,675 1,675

Professional services 898 598
Loan collection costs 662 604
Deposit insurance 589 67
Advertising 451 457
Other expenses 1,655 2,056
Total noninterest expense $ 22,939 $ 22,113

   •	   Compensation and benefits expense, the largest 
component of noninterest expense, increased as 
the Company added retail and lending staff through 
the first half of 2008. In addition, merit and incen-
tive based payments and medical benefits premi-
ums increased. In the third quarter, the Company 
commenced staff reductions. The benefits of this 
reduction will be realized primarily in 2009. At 
December 31, 2008 and 2007 there were 167 and 
201 full-time equivalent employees, respectively. 

     Occupancy expense remained flat this past year.  •	
     Processing and communications expenses •	

decreased as the Company began to realize savings 
from the investments which were made in phone 
and data line elements of its infrastructure in 2007 
as well as lower items processing costs.  

     Furniture and equipment expense remained •	
unchanged year over year.        

     Loan collection costs increased as the Company •	
addressed delinquent loans. 

     Professional service fees increased in 2008 in •	
response to higher consulting costs related to tax 
planning, compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002 and process reviews.  

     Deposit insurance expense increased significantly •	
in 2008 and is expected to continue to increase 
in the foreseeable future due to FDIC mandated 
increases in deposit insurance.  Previously, FDIC 
insurance expense was lower due to one time 
credits provided by the FDIC.     	

		  Advertising expense remained flat in 2008 due to •	
the use of less expensive delivery channels for new 
business generation. 
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    	Other expenses decreased $401 thousand or •	
9.5 percent to $1.7 million compared to the 
prior year.  This decrease was due primarily to 
decreased employee expenses including recruiting, 
education and travel expenses, reduced office sup-
ply expense due to a vendor change and the recov-
ery of previously charged off retail operating losses.  

Income Tax Expense
	 For 2008, the Company reported income tax expense 
of $616 thousand for a 24.2 percent effective tax rate 
compared to $2.0 million or a 29.5 percent effective tax 
rate in 2007.  The decrease in the tax provision was the 
result of lower pretax earnings and a lower effective 
tax rate.  The latter is related to a higher proportion 
of revenue being generated at a subsidiary with a lower 
effective tax.  The Company anticipates a 32 percent 
effective income tax rate in 2009. 

Financial Condition 

	 Total assets increased $146.1 million, or 19.4 percent, 
to $898.3 million at December 31, 2008, compared to 
$752.2 million at December 31, 2007. This increase 
was due to a $95.8 million increase in total loans and 
a $50.9 million increase in total securities funded by a 
$105.8 million increase in total deposits, a $20.0 million 
increase in borrowed funds and a $20.5 million increase in 
shareholders’ equity.  
	 Average total assets for 2008 were $821.2 million, 
a $108.2 million increase from the prior year’s $713.0 
million average balance. The increase in average assets was 
due primarily to growth in the loan portfolio funded by 
time deposits and borrowed funds.

Investment Securities Portfolio
	 The Company’s securities portfolio consists of 
available for sale (“AFS”) and held to maturity (“HTM”) 
investments. Management determines the appropriate 
security classification of available for sale or held to 
maturity at the time of purchase. The investment securities 
portfolio is maintained for asset-liability management 
purposes, as well as for liquidity and earnings purposes.  
	 AFS securities are investments carried at fair value 
that may be sold in response to changing market and 
interest rate conditions or for other business purposes. 
Activity in this portfolio is undertaken primarily to manage 
liquidity and interest rate risk, to take advantage of market 
conditions that create economically attractive returns 
and as an additional source of earnings. AFS securities 
consist primarily of U.S. Government sponsored agencies, 
obligations of state and political subdivisions, mortgage-
backed securities, corporate bonds and equity securities.
	 AFS securities totaled $117.3 million at December 
31, 2008, an increase of $52.5 million or 80.9 percent, 
compared to $64.9 million at December 31, 2007.   This 
net increase was the result of the following:

	 $80.7 million of purchases, which consisted pri-•	
marily of mortgage-backed securities and collat-
eralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”).  During 
December of 2008, the Company took advan-
tage of favorable credit spreads and purchased 
approximately $45.3 million in available for sale 
mortgage-backed securities and CMOs,

	 $19.0 million of maturities and principal pay •	
downs, 

	 $4.8 million in sales.  Sales consisted primarily •	
of callable FHLMC perpetual preferred stock in 
response to a decline in their market value and 
uncertainty regarding the financial viability of the 
issuer,

	 $1.9 million transfer to held to maturity.  Two •	
securities with a market value of $1.9 million 
were transferred from available for sale to held to 
maturity during the third quarter of 2008, consis-
tent with the Company’s intent and ability to hold 
these securities until maturity, 

	 $1.2 million in OTTI adjustments.  OTTI adjust-•	
ments during the year consisted primarily of 
write-downs on callable FHLMC perpetual pre-
ferred securities and two bank equities, and

	•	 $207 thousand depreciation in the market value 
of the portfolio.  At December 31, 2008, the 
portfolio had a net unrealized loss of $974 thou-
sand compared to a net unrealized loss of $767 
thousand at the end of the prior year. These 
unrealized gains and losses are reflected net of tax 
in shareholders’ equity as other comprehensive 
loss. 

  	 At December 31, 2008, available for sale securities 
included three callable FHLMC perpetual preferred 
securities with a total book value of $13 thousand.  These 
securities were initially classified as OTTI in December 
2007, at which time a $607 thousand impairment charge 
was taken, due to their declines in market value and 
the uncertainty that they would recover their book 
value.  During 2008, additional OTTI charges of 
approximately $1.2 million were taken on these securities 
due to further declines in their market value and the 
eventual placement of FHLMC into conservatorship.  In 
addition, the Company sold approximately $2.1 million in 
book value of these securities during the year, resulting in 
a pretax loss of approximately $469 thousand.
	 At December 31, 2008, the Company’s available for 
sale portfolio included one bank trust preferred security 
with a book value of $975 thousand and a market value 
of $318 thousand. The Company monitors the credit 
worthiness of the issuer of this security quarterly. At 
December 31, 2008, the Company had not taken any 
OTTI adjustments on this security. Management will 
continue to monitor the performance of the security and 
the underlying institution for impairment. Changes in the 
credit worthiness of the underlying issuer may result in 
OTTI charges and realized losses in the future.
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	 The average balance of securities available for sale 
amounted to $74.2 million in 2008 compared to $65.9 
million in 2007. The average yield earned on the available 
for sale portfolio increased 13 basis points, to 5.07 
percent in 2008 from 4.94 percent in 2007. The weighted 
average repricing of securities available for sale, adjusted 
for prepayments, amounted to 2.1 years at December 31, 
2008, compared to 2.8 years in 2007.
	 HTM securities, which are carried at amortized cost, 
are investments for which there is the positive intent and 
ability to hold to maturity. The portfolio is comprised of 
U.S. Government sponsored agencies, obligations of state 
and political subdivisions, mortgage-backed securities and 
corporate bonds.
	 HTM securities were $32.2 million at December 31, 
2008, a decrease of $1.6 million or 4.7 percent, from year-
end 2007.  This net decrease was the result of:

	 $6.8 million in purchases, •	
	 $1.9 million transfer from available for sale, •	
	 $9.9 million in principal payments, maturities and •	

called bonds, and 
	 $306 thousand other-than-temporary impairment •	

charge on a pooled trust preferred security.   

	 As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the market value 
of held to maturity securities was $30.1 million and $33.6 
million, respectively. The average balance of securities held 
to maturity amounted to $31.7 million in 2008 compared 
to $37.7 million in 2007. The average yield earned on held 
to maturity securities decreased 4 basis points, from 5.26 
percent in 2007 to 5.22 percent in 2008. The weighted 
average repricing of held to maturity securities, adjusted 
for prepayments, amounted to 3.7 years and 3.0 years at 
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.
	 At December 31, 2008, the Company’s held to 
maturity portfolio included two pooled bank trust 
preferred securities with a book value of $1.6 million 
and a market value of $300 thousand. The Company 
monitors the credit worthiness of the underlying issuers 
of these securities quarterly. At December 31, 2008, the 
Company had taken a $306 thousand OTTI adjustment 
on one of these pooled bank trust preferred securities. 
The Company will continue to monitor the performance 
of these securities and the underlying institutions for 
impairment. Changes in the credit worthiness of the 
underlying issuer may result in OTTI charges and realized 
losses in the future.
	 Approximately 85 percent of the total investment 
portfolio had a fixed rate of interest at December 31, 
2008.
	 Securities with a carrying value of $69.9 million 
and $62.0 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively, were pledged to secure Government 
deposits, secure other borrowings and for other purposes 
required or permitted by law. 

Loan Portfolio  
	 The loan portfolio, which represents the Company’s 
largest asset group, is a significant source of both interest 
and fee income. The portfolio consists of SBA, SBA 504, 
commercial, residential mortgage and consumer loans. 
Elements of the loan portfolio are subject to differing levels 
of credit and interest rate risk.
	 Total loans increased $95.8 million, or 16.2 percent 
to $685.9 million at December 31, 2008, from $590.1 
million at year-end 2007. Growth in the loan portfolio 
was generated by increases of $59.4 million in residential 
mortgages, $14.5 million in commercial loans, $11.8 million 
in SBA loans, $5.4 million in consumer loans and $4.7 
million in SBA 504 loans.
	 Average loans increased $94.9 million or 17.3 percent 
from $549.3 million in 2007, to $644.2 million in 2008.  
The increase in average loans was due to growth in all 
segments of the portfolio.  The yield on the loan portfolio 
fell 79 basis points to 6.95 percent in 2008 compared 
to 7.74 percent in 2007. This decrease was the result of 
variable rate, prime-based loan products such as SBA loans 
and home equity lines of credit repricing lower as rates fell 
during 2008.  The prime rate fell 400 basis points to 3.25 
percent by year-end 2008.
	 SBA 7(a) loans held to maturity amounted to $83.1 
million at December 31, 2008, an increase of $14.3 million 
from December 31, 2007. SBA 7(a) loans held for sale, 
carried at the lower of cost or market, amounted to 
$22.2 million at December 31, 2008, a decrease of $2.5 
million from December 31, 2007.  The SBA provides 
guarantees of up to 85 percent of the principal amount 
of SBA 7(a) loans. Historically, SBA 7(a) loans available 
for sale have been sold in the secondary market with the 
nonguaranteed portion held in the portfolio. However, 
during the third quarter of 2007 the Company announced 
a strategic decision to begin retaining a significant portion 
of its SBA 7(a) program loans in its portfolio, rather than 
selling them into the secondary market.  During the third 
quarter of 2008, in response to the recent credit crisis, 
reduced premiums on the sale of SBA 7(a) loans and a 
lack of liquidity in the secondary market for SBA loans, 
the Company closed all SBA production offices outside of 
its New Jersey, Pennsylvania and New York primary trade 
area.  Consequently, management believes the volume of 
SBA 7(a) loans originated will remain at current lower 
levels or continue to decline for the foreseeable future.  
	 At December 31, 2008, SBA 504 loans totaled $76.8 
million. The SBA 504 program consists of real estate 
backed commercial mortgages where the Company has 
the first mortgage and the SBA has the second mortgage 
on the property. Generally, the Company has a 50 percent 
loan to value ratio on SBA 504 program loans.
	 Commercial loans are generally made in the 
Company’s market place for the purpose of providing 
working capital, financing the purchase of equipment, 
inventory or commercial real estate and for other business 
purposes. These loans amounted to $308.2 million at 	
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	 The Company has a concentration to a group of 
borrowers in the Hotel/Motel industry of approximately 
11 percent of the total loan portfolio. There are no 
other concentrations of loans to any borrowers or group 
of borrowers exceeding 10 percent of the total loan 
portfolio. There are no foreign loans in the portfolio.  As a 
preferred SBA lender, a portion of the SBA portfolio is to 
borrowers outside the Company’s lending area. 
	 The following table shows the maturity distribution or 
repricing of the loan portfolio and the allocation of floating 
and fixed interest rates at December 31, 2008:  

(In thousands)
Within
1 Year

1-5 
Years

After 5 
Years Total

SBA $  77,915 $  26,078 $    1,315 $ 105,308
SBA 504  14,738 53,604 8,460 76,802
Commercial 109,504 170,354 28,307 308,165
Residential mortgage 32,356 60,654 40,100 133,110
Consumer 30,622 9,025 22,914 62,561
    Total $ 265,135 $ 319,715 $ 101,096 $ 685,946
Amount of loans with maturities or repricing dates greater than

one year:
Fixed interest rates $ 228,206
Floating or adjustable interest rates 192,605

Total $ 420,811

Asset Quality
	 Inherent in the lending function is the possibility that 
a customer may not perform in accordance with the 
contractual terms of the loan.  A borrower’s inability to 
pay its obligations according to the contractual terms can 

create the risk of past due loans and ultimately credit 
losses, especially on collateral deficient loans. 
	 Nonperforming loans generally consist of loans that 
are not accruing interest (nonaccrual loans) as a result 
of principal or interest being in default for a period of 
90 days or more or when the ability to collect principal 
and interest according to the contractual terms is in 
doubt. When a loan is classified as nonaccrual, interest 
accruals discontinue and all past due interest previously 
recognized as income is reversed and charged against 
current period income.  Unless the ability to collect 
principal and interest is reasonably assured, any payments 
received from the borrower are applied to outstanding 
principal until such time as management determines that 
the financial condition of the borrower and other factors 
merit recognition of a portion of such payments as interest 
income.
	 Credit risk is minimized by loan diversification and 
adhering to credit administration policies and procedures.  
Due diligence on loans begins upon the application for a 
loan by a prospective borrower.  Documentation, including 
a borrower’s credit history, materials establishing the value 
of potential collateral, the source of funds for repayment 
of the loan and other factors are analyzed before a loan 
is submitted for approval.  The loan portfolio is then 
subject to ongoing internal reviews for credit quality. In 
addition, an outside firm is used to conduct independent 
credit reviews as a source of additional information for 
management’s consideration. 

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
% of % of % of % of % of

(In thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
SBA held for sale $    22,181 3.2% $    24,640  4.2% $   12,273 2.4% $    14,001    3.1% $      7,574 2.0%
SBA held to maturity 83,127 12.1 68,875 11.7 66,802 13.2 64,660 14.4 55,576 14.9

SBA 504 76,802 11.2 72,145 12.2 58,067 11.4 48,639 10.9 36,913 9.9
Commercial 308,165 44.9 293,641 49.7 254,128 50.1 211,942 47.2 170,858 45.7
Residential mortgage 133,110 19.5 73,697 12.5 63,493 12.5 62,039 13.8 60,240 16.1
Consumer 62,561 9.1 57,134 9.7 52,927 10.4 47,286 10.6 42,419 11.4
Total Loans $  685,946 100.0% $  590,132 100.0% $  507,690 100.0% $  448,567 100.0% $  373,580 100.0%

December 31, 2008, an increase of $14.5 million from 
year-end 2007. The commercial portfolio is expected to 
continue to increase in 2009.
	 Residential mortgage loans consist of loans secured by 
1 to 4 family residential properties. These loans amounted	
to $133.1 million at December 31, 2008, an increase of 
$59.4 million from December 31, 2007. Growth during 
2008 was due to a new relationship with an established 
builder of high-end residential properties.       
	 Consumer loans consist of home equity loans 
and loans for the purpose of financing the purchase of 

consumer goods, home improvements, and other personal 
needs, and are generally secured by the personal property 
being purchased. These loans amounted to $62.6 million 
at December 31, 2008, an increase of $5.4 million from 
December 31, 2007. The growth in consumer loans is 
related to the growth in home equity loans and lines.
	 The following table sets forth the classification of loans 
by major category, including unearned fees, deferred costs 
and excluding the allowance for loan losses for the past 
five years at December 31:
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	 The following table sets forth information concerning nonperforming loans and nonperforming assets at December 31 
for the past five years:     
 
(In thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Nonperforming by category

SBA (1) $ 4,228 $ 2,110 $ 5,212 $ 1,391 $ 2,013
SBA 504 4,600 - - 757 260
Commercial 5,247  1,630 3,172 493 1,274

Residential mortgage 1,808 1,192 322 1,510 288
Consumer 237 529 203 210 256

Total nonperforming loans $ 16,120 $  5,461 $ 8,909 $ 4,361 $ 4,091
OREO 710 106 211 178 345
Total nonperforming assets $ 16,830 $ 5,567 $ 9,120 $ 4,539 $ 4,436

Past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest
SBA $ 332 $ 114 $ - $ - $ -
SBA 504 - - - - -
Commercial 146  41          -         - -
Residential mortgage 2,058 - 78 - -
Consumer - - - - -

Total $ 2,536 $ 155 $ 78 $         - $ -
Nonperforming loans to total loans 2.35 %  0.93 % 1.75 % 0.97 % 1.10 %
Nonperforming assets to total loans and OREO 2.45 % 0.94 % 1.80 % 1.01 % 1.19 %
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of 

nonperforming loans 64.06 % 153.49 % 85.58 % 158.04 % 143.14 %

(1) SBA loans guaranteed $ 1,983 $ 714 $ 2,953 $ 758 $ 1,240

	 Nonperforming loans were $16.1 million at December 
31, 2008, a $10.7 million increase from $5.5 million at 
year-end 2007.  During 2008, there was approximately 
$17.1 million in loans transferred into nonaccrual status; 
however, this was partially offset by $5.5 million in 
payoffs, charge-offs or principal pay downs. Included 
in nonperforming loans at December 31, 2008 was 
approximately $2.0 million of loans that are guaranteed 
by the SBA.  The increase in nonperforming loans was 
primarily related to credit deterioration in the SBA 7(a) 
and SBA 504 portfolios, most of which is secured by real 
estate.
	 There were $2.5 million of loans past due 90 days or 
more and still accruing at December 31, 2008, compared 
to $155 thousand at December 31, 2007.
	 Other real estate owned (“OREO”) properties totaled 
$710 thousand at year-end 2008, an increase of $604 
thousand from $106 thousand at December 31, 2007.  
	 Potential problem loans are those where information 
about possible credit problems of borrowers causes 
uncertainty as to the ability of such borrowers to comply 
with loan repayment terms.  These loans are not included 
in nonperforming loans as they continue to perform.  
Potential problem loans were $2.7 million at December 
31, 2008 and $2.6 million at December 31, 2007.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Unfunded Loan 
Commitments
	 The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level 
that the Company believes is sufficient to absorb probable 
and estimated credit losses in the loan portfolio as of 
the balance sheet date.  While allocations may be made 
to specific loans the total reserve is available for all loan 
losses.  
	 Management utilizes a standardized methodology 
to assess the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.  
This process includes the allocation of specific and 
general reserves. Specific reserves are made to significant 
individual impaired loans and are determined in accordance 
with SFAS 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of 
a Loan.  Impaired loans have been defined to include all 
nonaccrual loans.  All other “nonimpaired” loans are 
allocated a general reserve.  This general reserve is set 
based upon the historical net charge-off rate adjusted 
for certain environmental factors such as:  delinquency 
and impairment trends, charge-off and recovery trends, 
volume and loan term trends, risk and underwriting 
policy trends, staffing and experience changes, national 
and local economic trends, industry conditions and credit 
concentration changes.   
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	 Additions to the allowance for loan losses are 
made by provisions charged to expense whereas the 
allowance is reduced by net charge-offs (i.e., loans judged 
to be uncollectable are charged against the reserve, less 
any recoveries on such loans).  Although management 
attempts to maintain the allowance at a level deemed 
adequate to provide for probable losses, future additions 
to the allowance may be necessary based upon certain 
factors including obtaining updated financial information 
about the borrower’s financial condition and changes in 
market conditions and underlying collateral values.  In 
addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review 
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.  These 
agencies have in the past and may in the future require the 
Company to make additional adjustments based on their 
judgments about information available to them at the time 
of their examination.

	 The allowance for loan losses amounted to $10.3 
million at December 31, 2008, compared to $8.4 million 
at year-end 2007.  The increase in the allowance for 
loan losses was due to the provision for loan losses of 
$4.5 million exceeding $2.6 million of net charge-offs. In 
addition, the increase in the allowance for loan losses was 
attributable to the specific and general reserve factors 
used to determine reserve levels on certain types of loans, 
the analysis of the estimated probable losses inherent in 
the loan portfolio based upon the review of particular 
loans, the credit worthiness of particular borrowers, 
general economic conditions, and increased levels of 
nonperforming loans.
	 The following is a summary of the allowance for loan 
losses for the past five years:

(In thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance at beginning of year $   8,383 $  7,624 $ 6,892 $ 5,856 $ 5,352

Charge-offs:
SBA 1,246 770 573 301 320
SBA 504 1,000 - - 18 175
Commercial 408 155 298 282 426
Residential mortgage 25 - - 49 18
Consumer 145 50 62 523 29

Total charge-offs 2,824 975 933 1,173 968
Recoveries:

SBA 177 147 20 204 99
SBA 504 - - - - 15
Commercial 39 18 75 84 166
Residential mortgage - - - - -
Consumer 51 19 20 71 17

Total recoveries 267 184 115 359 297
Total net charge-offs $   2,557 $      791 $     818 $     814 $     671
Provision charged to expense $   4,500 $  1,550 $ 1,550 $ 1,850 $ 1,175

Balance at end of year $ 10,326 $  8,383 $ 7,624 $ 6,892 $ 5,856
Net charge-offs to average loans 0.40 % 0.14 % 0.17 % 0.20 % 0.19 %
Allowance to total loans 1.51 % 1.42 % 1.50 % 1.54 % 1.57 %

	 In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the 
Company maintains an allowance for unfunded loan 
commitments.  Commitments to extend credit represent 
arrangements to lend funds or provide liquidity subject to 
specified contractual conditions.  At December 31, 2008, 
a $105 thousand commitment reserve was reported on 
the balance sheet as an “other liability” compared to $102 
thousand at December 31, 2007.  Management determines 
this amount using estimates of future loan funding and 
losses related to those credit exposures. 

	 The following table sets forth, for each of the major 
lending categories, the amount of the allowance for loan 
losses allocated to each category and the percentage of 
total loans represented by such category, as of December 
31st  of each year.  The allocated allowance is the total of 
identified specific and general reserves by loan category.  
The allocation is made for analytical purposes and is not 
necessarily indicative of the categories in which future 
losses may occur.  The total allowance is available to 
absorb losses from any segment of the portfolio.
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
% of % of % of % of % of

(In thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Balance applicable to:

SBA $   2,603 15.3% $ 2,188 15.9% $ 2,066 15.6% $ 1,712 17.5% $ 1,724 16.9%

SBA 504 1,083 11.2 907 12.2 802 11.4 661 10.9 528 9.9
Commercial 4,486 44.9 4,208 49.7 4,063 50.1 3,756 47.2 2,908 45.9
Residential mortgage 1,494 19.5 570 12.5 305 12.5 444 13.8 375 16.1
Consumer 660 9.1 510 9.7 388 10.4 319 10.6 321 11.2

Total $ 10,326 100.0% $ 8,383 100.0% $ 7,624 100.0% $ 6,892 100.0% $ 5,856 100.0%

	 Total deposits increased $105.8 million to $707.1 
million at December 31, 2008 from $601.3 million at 
December 31, 2007. The increase in deposits was the 
result of a $154.8 million increase in time deposits, $9.0 
million increase in interest-bearing demand deposits and a 
$3.5 million increase in demand deposits, partially offset by 
a $61.5 million decline in savings deposits. 
	 The mix of deposits shifted during 2008 as the 
concentration of noninterest-bearing and interest-

bearing demand deposits and savings deposits fell and the 
concentration of higher-cost time deposits increased.  The 
average cost of interest-bearing deposits in 2008 was 3.25 
percent compared to 4.01 percent for 2007.  The decrease 
in the cost of deposits can be attributed to the lower 
interest rate environment, partially offset by the shift in the 
mix of deposits.  The Company expects continued growth 
in the deposit base in 2009.

	 The following are period-end deposit balances for each of the last three years: 

At December 31, 2008 2007 2006

(In thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Ending balance:

Interest-bearing demand deposits $   87,046 12.3% $   78,019 13.0% $ 105,382 18.6%
Savings deposits 134,875 19.1 196,390 32.7 205,919 36.4
Time deposits 411,106 58.1 256,259 42.6 175,392 30.9
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 74,090 10.5 70,600 11.7 79,772 14.1

Total deposits $ 707,117 100.0% $ 601,268 100.0% $ 566,465 100.0%

Deposits 
	 Deposits, which include noninterest-bearing demand 
deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, savings deposits 
and time deposits, are the primary source of the Company’s 
funds.  The Company offers a variety of products designed 
to attract and retain customers, with primary focus on 
building and expanding relationships.  For 2008, the Com-

pany realized continued growth in deposits.  This growth 
was achieved through an emphasis on customer service, 
competitive rate structures and selective marketing through 
the Company’s branch network.  The Company continues 
to focus on establishing a comprehensive relationship with 
business borrowers, seeking deposits as well as lending rela-
tionships.

	 The following are average deposits for each of the last three years:

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Average balance:

Interest-bearing demand deposits $   84,336 12.7% $   85,750 14.8% $ 117,730 21.4%
Savings deposits 168,784 25.5 204,214 35.3 183,815 33.5
Time deposits 330,174 50.0 213,407 36.8 169,572 30.9
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 78,282 11.8 75,581 13.1 77,747 14.2

Total deposits $ 661,576 100.0% $ 578,952 100.0% $ 548,864 100.0%
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Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Debentures
	 Borrowed funds consist primarily of fixed rate 
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of 
New York and repurchase agreements.  These borrowings 
are used as a source of liquidity or to fund asset growth 
not supported by deposit generation.  Residential 
mortgages and investment securities collateralize the 
borrowings from the FHLB, while investment securities are 
pledged against the repurchase agreements. 
	 As of December 31, 2008, borrowed funds totaled 
$120.5 million, an increase of $20.0 million from the 
prior year-end, as the pricing available for borrowed 
funds presented a favorable alternative to the high cost 
of deposits in the New Jersey and Eastern Pennsylvania 
market places. The change since December 31, 2007 was 
due to a $5.0 million increase in FHLB overnight lines of 
credit and a $15.0 million repo-advance in February 2008.  
	 As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company was 
a party to the following transactions:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
FHLB borrowings:

Overnight line of credit $ 10,000 $ 5,000
Fixed rate advances 40,000 40,000
Repurchase agreements 30,000 30,000

Other repurchase agreements 25,000 10,000
Subordinated debentures 15,465 15,465
	

	 At December 31, 2008, the Company had $93.0 
million of additional availability at the FHLB. Pledging 
additional collateral in the form of 1 to 4 family residential 
mortgages or investment securities can increase the line 
with the FHLB. 
	 For additional information see Note 10 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Market Risk
	 Based on the Company’s business, the two largest 
risks facing the Company are market risk and credit 
risk.  Market risk for the Company is primarily limited 
to interest rate risk, which is the impact that changes 
in interest rates would have on future earnings. The 
Company’s Asset/Liability Committee (“ALCO”) manages 

this risk. The principal objectives of ALCO are to establish 
prudent risk management guidelines, evaluate and control 
the level of interest rate risk in balance sheet accounts, 
determine the level of appropriate risk given the business 
focus, operating environment, capital, and liquidity 
requirements, and actively manage risk within Board-
approved guidelines.  ALCO reviews the maturities and 
repricing of loans, investments, deposits and borrowings, 
cash flow needs, current market conditions, and interest 
rate levels.
	 The Company uses various techniques to evaluate 
risk levels on both a short and long-term basis.  One of 
the monitoring tools is the “gap” ratio.  A gap ratio, as 
a percentage of assets, is calculated to determine the 
maturity and repricing mismatch between interest rate-
sensitive assets and interest rate-sensitive liabilities.  A gap 
is considered positive when the amount of interest rate-
sensitive assets repricing exceeds the amount of interest 
rate-sensitive liabilities repricing in a designated time 
period.  A positive gap should result in higher net interest 
income with rising interest rates, as the amount of the 
assets repricing exceed the amount of liabilities repricing.  
Conversely, a gap is considered negative when the amount 
of interest rate-sensitive liabilities exceeds interest rate-
sensitive assets, and lower rates should result in higher net 
interest income.
	 Repricing of mortgage-related investments are shown 
by contractual amortization and estimated prepayments 
based on the most recent 3-month constant prepayment 
rate.  Callable agency securities are shown based upon 
their option-adjusted spread modified duration date 
(“OAS”), rather than the next call date or maturity date.  
The OAS date considers the coupon on the security, 
the time to the next call date, the maturity date, market 
volatility and current rate levels.  Fixed rate loans are 
allocated based on expected amortization.
		  The following table sets forth the gap ratio at 
December 31, 2008.  Assumptions regarding the repricing 
characteristics of certain assets and liabilities are critical in 
determining the projected level of rate sensitivity.  Certain 
savings and interest checking accounts are less sensitive to 
market interest rate changes than other interest-bearing 
sources of funds.  Core deposits such as interest-bearing 
demand, savings and money market deposits are allocated 
based on their expected repricing in relation to changes in 
market interest rates.
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(In thousands)
Under six 

months

Six months 
through 

one year

More than 
one year 
through 

three years

More than 
three years 

through 
five years

More than 
five years 

through 
ten years

More than 
ten years 

and not 
repricing Total

Assets
Cash & due from banks $  - $  - $  - $  - $  - $ 18,902 $ 18,902
Federal funds sold 15,529 - - - - - 15,529
Federal Home Loan Bank stock          -         -          -           -           - 4,857 4,857
Investment securities  34,397 25,500 28,456 35,980 16,827 8,349 149,509
Loans 215,787 49,348 72,464 247,251 70,209 30,887 685,946
Other assets - - - - - 23,567 23,567
Total Assets $ 265,713 $ 74,848 $ 100,920 $ 283,231 $ 87,036 $ 86,562 $ 898,310
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $  - $  - $ - $ - $  - $ 74,090 $ 74,090
Savings and interest-bearing demand

deposits 108,061   1,031 10,396 82,851 19,582 - 221,921

Time deposits 140,301 116,938 85,081  68,038 748 - 411,106
Borrowed funds and subordinated

debentures 35,000      - 10,000  - 75,000 465 120,465

Other liabilities - - - - - 2,925 2,925
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - 67,803 67,803
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 283,362 $ 117,969 $ 105,477 $ 150,889 $ 95,330 $ 145,283 $ 898,310
Interest Rate Swap $ 15,000 $ - $  - $ (15,000) $  -   $  - $               -
Gap $ (2,649) $ (43,121) $ (4,557) $ 117,342 $ (8,294) $ (58,721) $ -
Cumulative Gap $ (2,649) $ (45,770) $ (50,327) $ 67,015 $ 58,721 $ - $ -
Cumulative Gap to Total Assets (0.3)% (5.1)% (5.6)% 7.5%  6.5% - -

	 At December 31, 2008, there was a six-month 
liability-sensitive gap of $2.6 million and a one-year 
liability-sensitive gap of $45.8 million, as compared to 
liability-sensitivity gaps of $128.2 million and $142.7 
million at December 31, 2007.  The six-month and one-
year cumulative gap to total assets ratios were within the 
Board-approved guidelines of +/- 20 percent.
	 Other models are also used in conjunction with the 
static gap table, which is not able to capture the risk 
of changing spread relationships over time, the effects 
of projected growth in the balance sheet or dynamic 
decisions such as the modification of investment maturities 
as a rate environment unfolds.   For these reasons, a 
simulation model is used, where numerous interest rate 
scenarios and balance sheets are combined to produce a 
range of potential income results.  Net interest income 
is managed within guideline ranges for interest rates 
rising or falling by 200 basis points.  Results outside 
of guidelines require action by ALCO to correct the 
imbalance.  Simulations are typically created over a 12 to 
24 month time horizon.  At December 31, 2008, these 
simulations show that with a 200 basis point immediate 
increase in interest rates, net interest income would 
decrease by approximately $269 thousand, or 0.9 percent. 
An immediate decline of 200 basis points in interest rates 
would decrease net interest income by approximately 
$1.1 million or 3.7 percent. These variances in net interest 
income are within the Board-approved guidelines of +/- 7 
percent.

	 Finally, to measure the impact of longer-term asset 
and liability mismatches beyond two years, the Company 
utilizes Modified Duration of Equity and Economic Value 
of Portfolio Equity (“EVPE”) models.  The modified 
duration of equity measures the potential price risk of 
equity to changes in interest rates.  A longer modified 
duration of equity indicates a greater degree of risk to 
rising interest rates.  Because of balance sheet optionality, 
an EVPE analysis is also used to dynamically model the 
present value of asset and liability cash flows, with rate 
shocks of 200 basis points.  The economic value of equity 
is likely to be different as interest rates change.  Like 
the simulation model, results falling outside prescribed 
ranges require action by ALCO.  The Company’s variance 
in the economic value of equity with rate shocks of 200 
basis points is a decline of 13.96 percent in a rising rate 
environment and a decrease of 16.23 percent in a falling 
rate environment.  The variance in the EVPE at December 
31, 2008 is within Board-approved guidelines of +/- 35 
percent.

Financial Derivatives
	 In order to manage interest rate risk, the Company 
may enter into financial derivative contracts such as 
interest rate swaps.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007 the 
Company was a party to interest rate swap agreements 
used to hedge variable rate debt as follows:
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(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007
Notional amount $ 15,000 $ 10,000
Weighted average pay rate 4.05% 4.10%
Weighted average receive rate

(three-month LIBOR)   3.22%     4.88%

Weighted average maturity
in years      2.90      3.73

Unrealized loss relating to
interest rate swaps

$ (1,013) $ (23)

	 For additional information, see Note 12 to the Com-
pany’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operating, Investing and Financing
	 The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present 
the changes in cash from operating, investing and financing 
activities. At December 31, 2008, the balance of cash and 
cash equivalents was $34.4 million, a decrease of $1.9 
million from December 31, 2007.
	 Net cash provided by operating activities totaled 
$4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, 
as compared to using $3.7 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2007. The primary source of funds was net 
income from operations adjusted for: provision for loan 
losses, depreciation expenses, proceeds from SBA loans 
held for sale and mortgage loans held for sale, offset by 
originations of SBA and mortgage loans held for sale.
	 Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 
$152.1 million in 2008, increasing $85.2 million from a year 
ago.  The cash used in investing activities was primarily a 
result of funding the loan and securities portfolios, partially 
offset by sales, maturities and paydowns in the investment 
portfolio. 
	 Net cash provided by financing activities amounted 
to $145.7 million for 2008, compared to $51.5 million in 
2007. The primary increase in cash provided by financing 
activities was due to growth in the Company’s deposit 
base, an increase in the Company’s borrowings and the 
sale of perpetual preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury.

Liquidity

	 The Company’s liquidity is a measure of its ability to 
fund loans, withdrawals or maturities of deposits and other 
cash outflows in a cost-effective manner. 

Parent Company
	 Generally, the Parent Company’s cash is used for the 
payment of operating expenses and cash dividends.  The 
principal sources of funds for the Parent Company are 
dividends paid by the Bank. The Parent Company only pays 
expenses that are specifically for the benefit of the Parent 
Company. Other than its investment in the Bank, Unity 
Statutory Trust II and Unity Statutory Trust III, the Parent 
Company does not actively engage in other transactions 
or business.  The majority of expenses paid by the Parent 
Company are related to Unity Statutory Trust II and Unity 
Statutory Trust III. 

	 At December 31, 2008, the Parent Company had $6.1 
million in cash and $94 thousand in marketable securities, 
valued at fair market value compared to $433 thousand 
in cash and $216 thousand in marketable securities at 
December 31, 2007.  The increase in cash at the Parent 
Company was due primarily to the receipt of $20.6 million 
from the sale of perpetual preferred stock through the 
U.S. Treasury’s CPP program and issuance of related 
warrants, partially offset by the funding of $15.0 million in 
capital to the Bank and the payment of cash dividends.    

Consolidated Bank
	 The principal sources of funds at the Bank are 
deposits, scheduled amortization and prepayments of loan 
and investment principal, sales and maturities of investment 
securities and funds provided by operations.  While 
scheduled loan payments and maturing investments are 
relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and 
loan prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest 
rates, economic conditions and competition.
	 Total FHLB borrowings amounted to $80.0 million 
and third party repurchase agreements totaled $25.0 
million, as of December 31, 2008.  At December 31, 2008, 
$93.0 million was available for additional borrowings from 
the FHLB.  Pledging additional collateral in the form of 1 
to 4 family residential mortgages or investment securities 
can increase the line with the FHLB.  An additional source 
of liquidity is the securities available for sale portfolio 
and SBA loans held for sale portfolio, which amounted to 
$117.3 million and $22.2 million respectively, at December 
31, 2008. 
	 As of December 31, 2008, deposits included $18.7 
million of Government deposits, as compared to $30.5 
million at year-end 2007. These deposits are generally 
short in duration and are very sensitive to price 
competition.  The Company believes that the current 
level of these types of deposits is appropriate.  Included 
in the portfolio were $15.7 million of deposits from five 
municipalities.  The withdrawal of these deposits, in whole 
or in part, would not create a liquidity shortfall for the 
Company. 
	  The Company was committed to advance 
approximately $111.9 million to its borrowers as of 
December 31, 2008, compared to $132.0 million at 
December 31, 2007.  At December 31, 2008, $31.2 million 
of these commitments expire after one year, compared 
to $31.4 million a year earlier.  At December 31, 2008, 
the Company had $4.5 million in standby letters of credit 
compared to $3.9 million in 2007.  The estimated fair 
value of these guarantees is not significant.  The Company 
believes it has the necessary liquidity to honor all 
commitments.  Many of these commitments will expire and 
never be funded. In addition, approximately 12 percent at 
December 31, 2008 and 25 percent at December 31, 2007, 
of these commitments are for SBA loans, which may be sold 
in the secondary market.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
	 The following table shows the amounts and expected maturities of off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 
2008. Further discussion of these commitments is included in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(In thousands)
One Year

or Less

One to
Three
Years

Three to
Five

Years
Over Five

Years Total
Standby letters of credit $ 4,388 $ 124 $     - $         - $ 4,512
	

	 The following table shows the contractual obligations of the Company by expected payment period, as of December 31, 
2008. Further discussion of these commitments is included in Notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(In thousands)
One Year

or Less

One to
Three
Years

Three to
Five

Years
Over Five

Years Total
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures $ 20,000 $ 10,000 $     - $ 90,465 $ 120,465
Operating lease obligations 1,092 831 700 137 2,760
Purchase obligations 854 1,810 16 - 2,680

Total $ 21,946 $ 12,641 $ 716 $ 90,602 $ 125,905

	 Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures include 
fixed term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank, 
repurchase agreements and subordinated debentures. 
The borrowings have defined terms and under certain 
circumstances are callable at the option of the lender.
	 Operating leases represent obligations entered into by 
the Company for the use of land, premise and equipment. 
The leases generally have escalation terms based upon 
certain defined indexes.
	 Purchase obligations represent legally binding and 
enforceable agreements to purchase goods and services 
from third parties and consist primarily of contractual 
obligations under data processing service agreements.

Capital
	 A significant measure of the strength of a financial 
institution is its capital base.  Federal regulators have 
classified and defined capital into the following components: 
(1) tier 1 capital, which includes tangible shareholders’ 
equity for common stock, qualifying preferred stock and 
other qualifying hybrid instruments, and (2) tier 2 capital, 
which includes a portion of the allowance for loan losses, 

certain qualifying long-term debt and preferred stock which 
does not qualify as tier 1 capital.  Minimum capital levels are 
regulated by risk-based capital adequacy guidelines, which 
require a bank to maintain certain capital as a percent 
of assets and certain off-balance sheet items adjusted for 
predefined credit risk factors (risk-adjusted assets).  A 
bank is required to maintain, at a minimum, tier 1 capital 
as a percentage of risk-adjusted assets of 4.0 percent and 
combined tier 1 and tier 2 capital as a percentage of risk-
adjusted assets of 8.0 percent.
	 In addition, banks are required to meet a leverage 
capital requirement, which measures tier 1 capital against 
average assets. Banks which are highly rated and not 
experiencing significant growth are required to maintain 
a leverage ratio of 3 percent while all other banks are 
expected to maintain a leverage ratio 100 to 200 basis 
points higher.
	 The following table summarizes the Company’s and the 
Bank’s risk-based and leveraged capital ratios at December 
31, 2008 and 2007, as well as the minimum regulatory 
capital ratios required to be deemed “well-capitalized.”

Company 2008 2007

Adequately
Capitalized

Requirements

Well-
Capitalized

Requirements
Leverage ratio 9.54% 8.25% 4.00% N/A
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 12.02% 9.81% 4.00% N/A
Total risk-based capital ratio 13.27% 11.06% 8.00% N/A

Bank 2008 2007

Adequately
Capitalized

Requirements

Well-
Capitalized

Requirements
Leverage ratio 7.88% 7.06% 4.00% 5.00%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 9.93% 8.39% 4.00% 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio 12.41% 11.00% 8.00% 10.00%
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	 At December 31, 2008, shareholders’ equity was 
$67.8 million, an increase of $20.5 million from year-end 
2007.  The increase in shareholders’ equity was a result of 
the following:

$20.6 million in proceeds from the sale of per-•	
petual preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury and 
the issuance of related warrants, 
$1.9 million in net income, •	
$583 thousand from the exercise of stock •	
options and employee stock-based compensation, 
$1.3 million depreciation in the market value of •	
securities,  
$675 thousand of common stock and cash divi-•	
dends, 
$614 thousand of net unrealized loss on cash •	
flow hedge derivatives, and 
$78 thousand in dividends accrued on preferred •	
stock.  

	 The ratio of total equity to assets at December 
31, 2008 and 2007 was 7.55 percent and 6.28 percent, 
respectively.
	 On October 3, 2008 Congress passed the Emergency 
Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”), which 
provides the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with broad 
authority to implement certain actions to help restore 
stability and liquidity to the U.S. markets.  One of the 
provisions resulting from the EESA Act was the Treasury’s 
Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”) which provides direct 
equity investment of perpetual preferred stock by the 
U.S. Treasury in qualified financial institutions.   This 
program is voluntary and requires an institution to 
comply with several restrictions and provisions, including 
limits on executive compensation, stock redemptions, 
and declaration of dividends.  The CPP provides for a 
minimum investment of 1 percent of risk-weighted assets, 
with a maximum investment of the lesser of 3 percent 
of risk-weighted assets or $25.0 billion.  The perpetual 
preferred stock has a dividend rate of 5 percent per year 
until the fifth anniversary of the Treasury investment and 
a dividend of 9 percent thereafter.  The CPP also requires 
the Treasury to receive warrants for common stock equal 
to 15 percent of the capital invested by the Treasury. 
The Company received an investment in perpetual 
preferred stock of $20.6 million as consideration for the 
preferred stock and warrants issued on December 5, 
2008.  The Company valued the common stock warrants 
at $2.6 million. The warrants are accounted for as equity 
securities.

	 Pursuant to the requirements of the Treasury’s 
Capital Purchase Program, the Company has suspended 
its stock repurchase program.  The Company’s share 
repurchase program, which was approved on October 21, 
2002, authorized the repurchase of up to 10 percent of 
its outstanding common stock.  The amount and timing of 
purchases is dependent on a number of factors, including 
the price and availability of the Company’s shares, general 
market conditions and competing alternate uses of funds.  
As of December 31, 2008 the Company had repurchased a 
total of 556 thousand shares of which 131 thousand shares 
have been retired, leaving 153 thousand shares remaining 
to be repurchased under the plan.  As part of its capital 
management program, the Company did not repurchase 
any of its shares in 2008.
	 During the third quarter of 2008, the Company revised 
its cash dividend payment policy.  The decision was made 
based upon the current economic environment to retain 
capital so that the holding company can remain a source of 
strength to the subsidiary bank.  Previously, the Company 
had paid a quarterly cash dividend at a rate set by the 
Board based upon a number of factors.  The Board has now 
established a targeted dividend payout ratio of 20 percent 
of the Company’s earnings, subject to adjustment based 
upon factors existing at the time of the dividend and the 
Company’s projected capital needs.  The Board now intends 
to pay a cash dividend once annually, in the next succeeding 
year.  The Company declared two dividends in 2008 totaling 
$0.10. 

Forward-Looking Statements
	 This report contains certain forward-looking 
statements, either expressed or implied, which are 
provided to assist the reader in understanding anticipated 
future financial performance. These statements involve 
certain risks, uncertainties, estimates and assumptions by 
management.
	 Factors that may cause actual results to differ from 
those results expressed or implied, include, but are not 
limited to those listed under Item 2A - “Risk Factors” in 
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K; the overall 
economy and the interest rate environment; the ability 
of customers to repay their obligations; the adequacy 
of the allowance for loan losses; competition; significant 
changes in tax, accounting or regulatory practices and 
requirements; and technological changes.  Although 
management has taken certain steps to mitigate the 
negative effect of the aforementioned items, significant 
unfavorable changes could severely impact the assumptions 
used and have an adverse effect on future profitability.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term 
is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the supervision and with the 
participation of the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, management conducted an evaluation 
of the effectiveness of our control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on 
our evaluation under the framework, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 31, 2008.

Pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, management’s assessment of the effectiveness 
of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has not been attested to by McGladrey & Pullen, 
LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2008, as stated in their report which is included herein. 

James A. Hughes
President and Chief Executive Officer

Alan J. Bedner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Unity Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (“the Company”) 
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements.

We were not engaged to examine management’s assessment about the effectiveness of Unity Bancorp, Inc. and 
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 included in the accompanying 
“Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
thereon.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania
March 19, 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

2008 2007
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 18,902 $   14,336
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits 15,529 21,976

Cash and cash equivalents 34,431 36,312
Securities:

Available for sale 117,348 64,855
Held to maturity (fair value of $30,088 and $33,639 in 2008 and 2007, respectively)                                         32,161 33,736

Total securities 149,509 98,591

Loans:
SBA held for sale 22,181 24,640
SBA held to maturity 83,127 68,875
SBA 504 76,802 72,145
Commercial 308,165 293,641
Residential mortgage 133,110 73,697
Consumer 62,561 57,134
Total loans 685,946 590,132

Less: Allowance for loan losses 10,326 8,383
Net loans 675,620 581,749

Premises and equipment, net 12,580 12,102
Bank owned life insurance 5,780 5,570
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 4,857 4,395
Accrued interest receivable      4,712 3,994
Goodwill and other intangibles 1,574 1,588
Loan servicing asset 1,503 2,056
Other assets 7,744 5,839

Total Assets $ 898,310 $ 752,196
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 74,090 $  70,600
Interest-bearing demand deposits 87,046 78,019
Savings deposits 134,875 196,390
Time deposits, under $100,000 270,275 168,244
Time deposits, $100,000 and over 140,831 88,015

Total deposits 707,117 601,268

Borrowed funds 105,000 85,000
Subordinated debentures   15,465 15,465
Accrued interest payable 805 635
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,120 2,568

Total Liabilities 830,507 704,936
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11) - -
Shareholders’ equity:

Cumulative Perpetual Preferred stock, Series B, $1 liquidation preference per share, 500 shares
authorized, 21 shares issued and outstanding in 2008; there were no shares issued and outstanding 
in 2007

18,064 -

Common stock, no par value, 12,500 shares authorized, 7,544 shares issued and 7,119 outstanding in
2008; 7,488 shares issued and 7,063 outstanding in 2007 55,179 49,447

Retained earnings 1,085 2,472
Treasury stock at cost (425 shares in 2008 and 2007) (4,169) (4,169)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,356) (490)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 67,803 47,260
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 898,310 $  752,196

The accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,
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Consolidated Statements of Income

2008 2007
Interest income

Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits $ 471 $ 1,068
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 240 258
Securities:

Available for sale 3,673 3,167
Held to maturity 1,582 1,913

Total securities 5,255 5,080
Loans:

SBA 8,370 9,039
SBA 504 5,572 5,345
Commercial 21,424 20,393
Residential mortgage 5,971 3,995
Consumer 3,462 3,722

Total loans 44,799 42,494
Total interest income 50,765 48,900

Interest expense
Interest-bearing demand deposits 1,468 1,928
Savings deposits 3,644 8,064
Time deposits 13,836 10,206
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 4,526 4,276

Total interest expense 23,474 24,474
Net interest income 27,291 24,426

Provision for loan losses 4,500 1,550
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 22,791 22,876

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,393 1,383
Service and loan fee income 1,271 1,607
Gain on sale of SBA loans held for sale, net 1,217 2,399
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 40 52
Bank owned life insurance 210 198
Other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities (1,540) (607)
Net security (losses) gains (378) 36
Other income 481 872

Total noninterest income 2,694 5,940
Noninterest expense

Compensation and benefits 11,985 11,446
Occupancy 2,773 2,777
Processing and communications 2,251 2,433
Furniture and equipment 1,675 1,675
Professional services 898 598
Loan collection costs 662 604
Deposit insurance 589 67
Advertising 451 457
Other expenses 1,655 2,056

Total noninterest expense 22,939 22,113
Income before provision for income taxes 2,546 6,703

Provision for income taxes 616 1,978
Net income $ 1,930 $    4,725

Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion 110 -
Income available to common shareholders $ 1,820 $ 4,725
Net income per share - Basic $ 0.26 $      0.65

Diluted $ 0.25 $      0.63
Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic 7,097 7,245

Diluted 7,249 7,527

The accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in 
Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred 
Stock

Common Stock Retained  
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Total
Shareholders’

EquityShares Amount
Balance, December 31, 2006 $          - 7,296 $ 44,343 $ 2,951 $   (242) $ (824) $    46,228
Comprehensive income:

Net Income 4,725 4,725
Net unrealized securities gains 348 348

Net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge
derivative (14) (14)

Total comprehensive income 5,059
Dividends on Common Stock

($.19 per share) (1,381) (1,381)
5% Stock Dividend, including cash-in-lieu of 

fractional shares 3,820 (3,823) (3)
Common stock purchased (399) (3,927) (3,927)
Issuance of common stock:

Stock issued, including related tax
benefits 148 992 992

Stock-based compensation 18 292 292
Balance, December 31, 2007 $             - 7,063 $ 49,447 $ 2,472 $ (4,169) $ (490) $ 47,260
Comprehensive income:

Net Income 1,930 1,930
Net unrealized securities losses (1,252) (1,252)
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge

derivative (614) (614)
Total comprehensive income 64
Cumulative Perpetual Stock Issued to

U.S. Treasury 18,032 2,617 20,649

Accretion of Discount on Preferred Stock 32 (32) -
Dividends on Preferred Stock (5% annually) (78) (78)
Dividends on Common Stock

($.10 per share) (672) (672)

5% Stock Dividend, including cash-in-lieu of
fractional shares 2,532 (2,535) (3)

Issuance of common stock:
Stock issued, including related tax

benefits 34 235 235
Stock-based compensation 22 348 348

Balance, December 31, 2008 $ 18,064 7,119 $ 55,179 $ 1,085 $ (4,169) $ (2,356) $ 67,803

The accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(In thousands)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

2008 2007
Operating activities:

Net income $    1,930    $    4,725
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

by (used in) operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 4,500 1,550
Net amortization of purchase premiums and discounts on securities 76 76
Depreciation and amortization 597 1,000
Deferred income tax benefit (1,262) (693)
Other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities 1,540 607
Net security loss (gains) 378 (36)
Stock compensation expense 348 292
Gain on sale of SBA loans held for sale, net (1,217) (2,399)
Gain on sale of mortgage loans (40) (52)
Origination of mortgage loans held for sale (2,612) (2,963)
Origination of SBA loans held for sale (28,164) (53,948)
Proceeds from the sale of mortgage loans held for sale, net 2,652 3,016
Proceeds from the sale of SBA loans held for sale, net 26,050 43,980
Loss on the sale of fixed assets 23 -
Net change in other assets and liabilities (351) 1,129

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,448 (3,716)
Investing activities:

Purchases of securities held to maturity (6,762) -
Purchases of securities available for sale (80,744) (18,630)
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost (1,857) (4,720)
Maturities and principal payments on securities held to maturity 9,871 9,034
Maturities and principal payments on securities available for sale 18,955 11,032
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale 4,422 5,346
Proceeds from redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,395 3,278
Proceeds from the sale of other real estate owned 520 645
Net increase in loans (96,362) (71,328)
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equipment 268 31
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,759) (1,587)

Net cash used in investing activities (152,053) (66,899)
Financing activities:

Net increase in deposits 105,849      34,803
Proceeds from new borrowings 51,000 40,000
Repayments of borrowings (31,000) (10,000)
Sale of perpetual preferred stock to U.S. Treasury 18,032 -
Warrants issued to U.S. Treasury 2,617 -
Redemption of Trust Preferred Securities - (9,000)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 235 992
Purchase of common stock -     (3,927)
Cash dividends paid on common stock (1,009) (1,377)

Net cash provided by financing activities 145,724 51,491
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,881) (19,124)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 36,312 55,436
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  34,431   $  36,312

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash:

Interest paid $  23,304 $  24,314
Income taxes paid 1,530 3,358

Noncash investing activities:
Transfer of loans to other real estate owned 1,124 540
Transfer of securities from available for sale to held to maturity 1,860 -
Accrued dividends on common stock 675 1,384

The accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.		 Summary of Significant 	
		  Accounting Policies
	
Overview
	 The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements 
include the accounts of Unity Bancorp, Inc. (the “Parent 
Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Unity Bank 
(or when consolidated with the Parent Company, the 
“Company”).  All significant intercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
	 Unity Bancorp, Inc. is a bank holding company 
incorporated in New Jersey under the Bank Holding 
Company Act of 1956, as amended.  Its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, Unity Bank (the “Bank”, or when consolidated 
with the Parent Company, the “Company”) is chartered by 
the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance.   The 
Bank provides a full range of commercial and retail banking 
services through 16 branch offices located in Hunterdon, 
Middlesex, Somerset, Union and Warren counties in New 
Jersey and Northampton County in Pennsylvania.  These 
services include the acceptance of demand, savings, and time 
deposits and the extension of consumer, real estate, Small 
Business Administration (“SBA”) and other commercial 
credits.  Unity Investment Services, Inc., a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Bank, is used to hold part of the Bank’s 
investment portfolio.  Unity Participation Company, Inc., a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, is used to hold part 
of the Bank’s loan portfolio.
	 The Company has two statutory trust subsidiaries that 
are wholly-owned by Unity Bancorp, Inc.  See details in 
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial 
Statements 
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Amounts requiring 
the use of significant estimates include the allowance for 
loan losses, valuation of deferred tax and servicing assets, 
the carrying value of loans held for sale and other real 
estate owned, the determination of other-than-temporary 
impairment for securities and the fair value disclosures of 
financial instruments.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.

Reclassifications 
	 Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior 
year to conform to the current year presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
amounts due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-
bearing deposits. 

Securities
	 The Company classifies its securities into two 
categories, available for sale and held to maturity.  Securities 
that are classified as available for sale are stated at fair 
value.  Unrealized gains and losses on securities available 
for sale are excluded from results of operations and are 
reported as other comprehensive income, a separate 
component of shareholders’ equity, net of taxes.  Securities 
classified as available for sale include securities that may 
be sold in response to changes in interest rates, changes 
in prepayment risks or for asset/liability management 
purposes.  The cost of securities sold is determined on a 
specific identification basis.  Gains and losses on sales of 
securities are recognized in the statements of income on 
the date of sale.  Securities are classified as held to maturity 
based on management’s intent and ability to hold them to 
maturity.  Such securities are stated at cost, adjusted for 
unamortized purchase premiums and discounts on the level 
yield method.  
	 Transfers between the available for sale and held 
to maturity portfolios are accounted for at fair value.  
Unrealized holding gains and losses are accounted for 
at the date of transfer.  For securities transferred to 
available for sale from held to maturity, unrealized gains 
or losses as of the date of the transfer are recognized in a 
separate component of shareholders’ equity.  For securities 
transferred into the held to maturity portfolio from the 
available for sale portfolio, unrealized gains or losses as of 
the date of transfer continue to be reported in a separate 
component of the shareholders’ equity and are amortized 
over the remaining life of the security as an adjustment to 
its yield, consistent with amortization of the premium or 
accretion of discount.  
	 Management evaluates securities for other-than-
temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and 
more frequently when economic or market concern 
warrants such evaluation.  
	 For additional information on securities, see Note 4 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
	 Federal law requires a member institution of the 
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system to hold stock 
of its district FHLB according to a predetermined formula.  
The stock is carried at cost.  As of December 31, 2008 and 
2007, the Company held $4.9 million and $4.4 million in 
FHLB stock, respectively.
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Loans Held To Maturity and Loans Held For Sale  
	 Loans held to maturity are stated at the unpaid 
principal balance, net of unearned discounts and net of 
deferred loan origination fees and costs.  Loan origination 
fees, net of direct loan origination costs, are deferred and 
are recognized over the estimated life of the related loans 
as an adjustment to the loan yield utilizing the level yield 
method.
	 Interest is credited to operations primarily based upon 
the principal amount outstanding.  When management 
believes there is sufficient doubt as to the ultimate ability to 
collect interest on a loan, interest accruals are discontinued 
and all past due interest, previously recognized as income, 
is reversed and charged against current period earnings.  
Payments received on nonaccrual loans are applied as 
principal.  Loans are returned to an accrual status when the 
ability to collect is reasonably assured and when the loan is 
brought current as to principal and interest.
	 Loans and leases are reported as past due when 
either interest or principal is unpaid in the following 
circumstances: fixed payment loans when the borrower is 
in arrears for two or more monthly payments; open end 
credit for two or more billing cycles; and single payment 
notes if interest or principal remains unpaid for 30 days or 
more.
	 Loans are charged off when collection is sufficiently 
questionable and when the Company can no longer justify 
maintaining the loan as an asset on the balance sheet. 
Loans qualify for charge-off when, after thorough analysis, 
all possible sources of repayment are insufficient.  These 
include: 1) potential future cash flows, 2) value of collateral, 
and/or 3) strength of co-makers and guarantors.  All 
unsecured loans are charged off upon the establishment of 
the loan’s nonaccrual status.  Additionally, all loans classified 
as a loss or that portion of the loan classified as a loss, are 
charged off.  All loan charge-offs are approved by the Board 
of Directors.
	 Nonperforming loans consist of loans that are not 
accruing interest (nonaccrual loans) as a result of principal 
or interest being in default for a period of 90 days or 
more or when the ability to collect principal and interest 
according to the contractual terms is in doubt.  When a 
loan is classified as nonaccrual, interest accruals discontinue 
and all past due interest previously recognized as income 
is reversed and charged against current period income. 
Generally, until the loan becomes current, any payments 
received from the borrower are applied to outstanding 
principal until such time as management determines that 
the financial condition of the borrower and other factors 
merit recognition of a portion of such payments as interest 
income.
	 The Company evaluates its loans for impairment.  
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current 
information and events, it is probable that the Company 
will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the 
contractual terms of the loan agreement.  The Company 
has defined impaired loans to be all nonaccrual loans.  
Impairment of a loan is measured based on the present 
value of expected future cash flows, net of estimated 

costs to sell, discounted at the loan’s effective interest 
rate.  Impairment can also be measured based on a loan’s 
observable market price or the fair value of collateral, net 
of estimated costs to sell, if the loan is collateral dependent.  
If the measure of the impaired loan is less than the 
recorded investment in the loan, the Company establishes a 
valuation allowance, or adjusts existing valuation allowances, 
with a corresponding charge or credit to the provision for 
loan losses.
	 Loans held for sale are SBA loans and are reflected 
at the lower of aggregate cost or market value.  The net 
amount of loan origination fees on loans sold are included 
in the carrying value and in the gain or loss on the sale.
	 The Company originates loans to customers under an 
SBA program that generally provides for SBA guarantees 
up to 85 percent of each loan.  The Company generally sells 
the guaranteed portion of each loan to a third party and 
retains the servicing.  The premium received on the sale of 
the guaranteed portion of SBA loans and the present value 
of future cash flows of the servicing asset are recognized in 
income.  The unguaranteed portion is generally held in the 
portfolio.  During the third quarter of 2007, the Company 
announced its strategy to retain more SBA loans in its 
portfolio due to lower premiums on sales.
	 Serviced loans sold to others are not included in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  Income and 
fees collected for loan servicing are credited to noninterest 
income when earned, net of amortization on the related 
servicing asset.  
	 For additional information on loans, see Note 5 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Transfers of Financial Assets
	 Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as 
sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered.  
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be 
surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from 
the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of 
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that 
right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and 
(3) the Company does not maintain effective control over 
the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase 
them before their maturity. 

Allowance for Loan Losses and Unfunded Loan 
Commitments
	 The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level 
management considers adequate to provide for probable 
loan losses as of the balance sheet date.  The allowance 
is increased by provisions charged to expense and is 
reduced by net charge-offs.  The level of the allowance 
is based on management’s evaluation of probable losses 
in the loan portfolio, after consideration of prevailing 
economic conditions in the Company’s market area.  
Credit reviews of the loan portfolio, designed to identify 
potential charges to the allowance, are made during the 
year by management with support from a loan review 
consultant.  A risk rating system, consisting of multiple 
grading categories, is utilized as an analytical tool to assess 
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risk and the appropriate level of loss reserves.  Along 
with the risk system, management further evaluates 
risk characteristics of the loan portfolio under current 
economic conditions and considers such factors as the 
financial condition of the borrowers, past and expected 
loan loss experience, and other factors management feels 
deserve recognition in establishing an adequate reserve.  
This risk assessment process is performed at least quarterly, 
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are realized 
in the periods in which they become known.   Although 
management attempts to maintain the allowance at a level 
deemed adequate to provide for probable losses, future 
additions to the allowance may be necessary based upon 
certain factors including changes in market conditions and 
underlying collateral values.  In addition, various regulatory 
agencies periodically review the adequacy of the Company’s 
allowance for loan losses.  These agencies may require the 
Company to make additional provisions based on their 
judgments about information available to them at the time 
of their examination.
	 The Company maintains an allowance for unfunded 
loan commitments that is maintained at a level that 
management believes is adequate to absorb estimated 
probable losses.  Adjustments to the allowance are made 
through other expenses and applied to the allowance which 
is maintained in other liabilities.
	 For additional information, see Note 6 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Premises and Equipment 
	 Land is carried at cost.  Buildings and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation 
is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, not to exceed 30 years.  For 
additional information on premises and equipment, see 
Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Real Estate Owned
	 Other real estate owned is recorded at the fair value, 
less estimated costs to sell, at the date of acquisition, with 
a charge to the allowance for loan losses for any excess 
of the loan carrying value over such amount. Subsequently, 
other real estate owned is carried at the lower of cost 
or fair value, as determined by current appraisals, less 
estimated selling costs.  Certain costs incurred in preparing 
properties for sale are capitalized to the extent that the 
appraisal amount exceeds the carry value, and expenses of 
holding foreclosed properties are charged to operations as 
incurred.

Income Taxes 
	 The Company accounts for income taxes according to 
the asset and liability method.  Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax basis.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates 
applicable to taxable income for the years in which those 

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled.  The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of 
a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period 
that includes the enactment date.  Valuation reserves are 
established against certain deferred tax assets when it is 
more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not 
be realized.  Increases or decreases in the valuation reserve 
are charged or credited to the income tax provision.
	 When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that 
some positions taken would be sustained upon examination 
by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to 
uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the 
amount of the position that ultimately would be sustained.  
The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial 
statements in the period during which, based on all available 
evidence, management believes it is more likely than not 
that the position will be sustained upon examination, 
including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if 
any.  The evaluation of a tax position taken is considered by 
itself and not offset or aggregated with other positions.  Tax 
positions that meet the more likely than not recognition 
threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit 
that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon 
settlement with the applicable taxing authority.  The portion 
of benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds 
the amount measured as described above is reflected as a 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying 
balance sheet along with any associated interest and 
penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities 
upon examination.
	 Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized 
tax benefits are recognized in income tax expense on the 
income statement. 
	 For additional information on income taxes, see Note 
16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Per Share 
	 Basic net income per share is computed by dividing 
the income available to common shareholders for the 
period by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding for the period.  Diluted net income 
per share is computed by dividing income available to 
common shareholders for the period by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding for the 
period presented adjusted for the effect of common stock 
equivalents, such as stock options and nonvested restricted 
stock and warrants, under the treasury stock method.  Net 
income is reduced by the dividends on the cumulative 
perpetual preferred stock issued to the U.S. Treasury and 
the accretion of the discount on the preferred stock.  The 
amounts reported have been adjusted for the impact of 
dividends declared on common stock.  For additional 
information on income per share, see Note 17 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Other Comprehensive Income
	 Other comprehensive income consists of the change 
in unrealized (loss) gain on securities available for sale 
and derivatives designated as cash flow hedges that were 
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reported as a component of shareholders’ equity, net of tax.  
For additional information on other comprehensive income, 
see Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
	 The Company uses derivative instruments, such as 
interest rate swaps, to manage interest rate risk.  The 
Company recognizes all derivative instruments at fair 
value as either assets or liabilities in other assets or other 
liabilities.  The accounting for changes in the fair value of 
a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been 
designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship.  
For derivatives not designated as an accounting hedge, the 
gain or loss is recognized in trading noninterest income.
	 For those derivative instruments that are designated 
and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company must 
designate the hedging instrument, based on the exposure 
being hedged, as a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge or 
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.  The 
Company does not have any fair value hedges or hedges of 
foreign operations.
	 The Company formally documents the relationship 
between the hedging instruments and hedged item, as 
well as the risk management objective and strategy before 
undertaking a hedge.  For hedging relationships in which 
effectiveness is measured, the Company formally assesses, 
both at inception and on an ongoing basis, if the derivatives 
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or 
cash flows of the hedged item.  If it is determined that the 
derivative instrument is not highly effective as a hedge, 
hedge accounting is discontinued.
	 For derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges, 
the effective portion of the gain or loss on derivatives is 
reported as a component of other comprehensive income 
or loss.  The change in fair value of any ineffective portion of 
the hedging derivative is recognized immediately in earnings.
	 Hedge accounting discontinues when it is determined 
that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge; 
the derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; or 
the derivative is no longer designated as a fair value or cash 
flow hedge or it is no longer probable that the forecasted 
transaction will occur by the end of the originally specified 
time period.  If the Company determines that the derivative 
no longer qualifies as a cash flow or fair value hedge and 
therefore hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative 
will continue to be recorded on the balance sheet at its fair 
value with changes in fair value included in current earnings.   
	 For additional information on derivative instruments, 
see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation 
	 The Company accounts for its stock-based 
compensation awards in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, Share-
Based Payment (“Statement 123R”).  Statement 123R 
requires public companies to recognize compensation 
expense related to stock-based compensation awards over 
the period during which an employee is required to provide 
service for the award.  Compensation expense is equal to 
the fair value of the award, net of estimated forfeitures, and 

is recognized over the vesting period of such awards.  	
	 For additional information on the Company’s stock-
based compensation, see Note 19 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Treasury Stock
	 Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method 
and accordingly is presented as a reduction in shareholders’ 
equity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance 
	 The Company purchased life insurance policies 
on certain members of management.  Bank owned life 
insurance (“BOLI”) is recorded at its cash surrender value 
or the amount that can be realized. 
 
Advertising 
	 The Company expenses the costs of advertising in the 
period incurred. 
 
Dividend Restrictions 
	 Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital 
levels that may limit the dividends paid by our bank to 
our holding company or by our holding company to our 
shareholders.  In addition, the Company’s participation in 
the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program 
places restrictions on increased dividend declarations. 
 
Operating Segments 
	 While management monitors the revenue streams 
of its various products and services, operating results and 
financial performance are evaluated on a company-wide 
basis.  The Company’s Management uses consolidated 
results to make operating and strategic decisions.  
Accordingly, there is only one reportable segment. 
 
Servicing Assets 
	 Servicing assets represent the estimated fair value 
of retained servicing rights at the time loans are sold.  
Servicing assets are expensed in proportion to, and over 
the period of, estimated net servicing revenues.  Impairment 
is evaluated based on stratifying the underlying financial 
assets by date of origination and term.  Fair value is 
determined using prices for similar assets with similar 
characteristics, when available, or based upon discounted 
cash flows using market-based assumptions.  Any 
impairment, if temporary, would be reported as a valuation 
allowance. 

Fair Value
	 Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS 
157, Fair Value Measurement, which provides a framework 
for measuring fair value under generally accepted 
accounting principles.  SFAS 157 applies to all financial 
instruments that are being measured and reported on a fair 
value basis.	
	 The Company also adopted SFAS 159, The Fair 
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, on 
January 1, 2008.  SFAS 159 allows an entity the irrevocable 
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option to elect fair value for the initial and subsequent 
measurement of certain financial assets on a contract-
by-contract basis.  SFAS 159 requires that the difference 
between the carrying value before election of the fair value 
option and the fair value of these instruments be recorded 
as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the 
period of adoption.  The Company presently elected not to 
report any of its existing financial assets or liabilities at fair 
value and consequently did not have any adoption related 
adjustments. 
	 For additional information on the fair value of the 
Company’s financial instruments, see Note 20 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
	 The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 
Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, became 
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 
2007.  However, the FASB has deferred the effective date 
in Statement 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial 
liabilities (except for items that are recognized or disclosed 
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis - at least annually) with the issuance of FASB Staff 
Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement 
No. 157, to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 
2008.  This deferral does not apply to entities that have 
issued interim or annual financial statements that include 
application of the measurement and disclosure provisions 
of Statement 157. This FSP lists examples of items for 
which deferral would apply, including nonfinancial assets 
and nonfinancial liabilities initially measured at fair value 
in a business combination or other new basis event, 
but not measured at fair value in subsequent periods 
(nonrecurring fair value measures).  Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities are defined in FASB Statement No. 
107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments.  
Accordingly, the Company has deferred the disclosures 
related to the fair value of Goodwill as of December 31, 
2008.  The Company does not expect that adoption of the 
FSP will have a material impact on its financial condition or 
results of operations.
	 FSP 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset 
When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active, was issued on 
October 10, 2008, and became effective upon issuance.  
This FSP applies to financial assets within the scope of 
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair 
value measurements in accordance with Statement 157 
and clarifies the application of Statement 157 in a market 
that is not active.  This FSP was effective upon issuance, 
including prior periods for which financial statements have 
not been issued.  Revisions resulting from a change in the 
valuation technique or its application are accounted for as 
a change in accounting estimate (FASB Statement No. 154, 
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections). The disclosure 
provisions of Statement 154 for a change in accounting 
estimate are not required for revisions resulting from 
a change in valuation technique or its application.  The 
adoption of this FSP did not have a material impact on the 
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

	 FSP No. EITF 99-20-1 amends the impairment 
guidance in EITF Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest 
Income and Impairment on Purchased Beneficial Interests and 
Beneficial Interests That Continue to Be Held by a Transferrer 
in Securitized Financial Assets, to achieve more consistent 
determination of whether an other-than-temporary 
impairment has occurred.  The FSP also retains and 
emphasizes the objective of an other-than-temporary 
impairment assessment and the related disclosure 
requirements in FASB statement No. 115, Accounting 
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, and 
other related guidance.  The objective of an other-than-
temporary impairment analysis is to determine whether 
it is probable that the holder will realize some portion 
of the unrealized loss on an impaired security. U.S. 
GAAP indicates that the holder may ultimately realize 
the unrealized loss on the impaired security because, for 
example, (a) it is probable that the holder will not collect 
all of the contractual or estimated cash flows, considering 
both the timing and amount or (b) the holder lacks the 
intent and ability to hold the security to recovery.  In 
making its other-than-temporary impairment assessment, 
the holder should consider all available information 
relevant to the ability to collect the security, including 
information about past events, current conditions, and 
the value of underlying collateral.  The EITF is effective 
for interim and annual reporting periods ending after 
December 15, 2008, and shall be applied prospectively.  
Retrospective application to a prior interim or annual 
reporting period is not permitted.  The Company evaluates 
securities for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) 
at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when 
economic or market concern warrants such evaluation.  
OTTI charges amounted to $1.5 million during 2008. 
Additional OTTI charges may be realized in the future 
as the result of changes in the financial condition and 
near-term prospects of the issuer or the inability of the 
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period 
of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in 
fair value.
	 In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, 
Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities – an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.  This 
Statement requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s 
derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves 
the transparency of financial reporting. This Statement is 
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and 
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with 
early application encouraged. This Statement encourages, 
but does not require, comparative disclosures for earlier 
periods at initial adoption.
	 In December 2007, FASB issued Statements of Financial 
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141 (R), Business 
Combinations, and SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  SFAS No. 141 revises 
the previous statement on business combinations and 
requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to 
recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed in the transaction; establishes the acquisition-
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date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer 
to disclose to investors and other users all of the financial 
effect of the business combination.  As this Statement 
applies prospectively to business combinations for which 
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first 
annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 
2008, this Statement was not applicable to the Company for 
the year ended December 31, 2008.  SFAS No. 160 requires 
all entities to report noncontrolling (minority) interests in 
subsidiaries in the same way – as equity in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

2.		 Goodwill

	 The Company accounts for goodwill and other 
intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill 
and Intangible Assets, which includes requirements to 
test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets on an 
annual basis for impairment, rather than amortize them.  

Management conducted annual and interim tests and 
determined that the Company’s recorded goodwill totaling 
$1.5 million, which resulted from the 2005 acquisition of 
its Phillipsburg, New Jersey branch, is not impaired as of 
December 31, 2008.

3.		 Restrictions on Cash

	 Federal law requires depository institutions to main-
tain a prescribed amount of cash or noninterest-bearing 
balances with the Federal Reserve Bank.  As of December 
31, 2008 and 2007, the Company was required to maintain 
reserve balances of $80 thousand.

4.		 Securities

	 This table provides the major components of securities 
available for sale and held to maturity at amortized cost and 
estimated fair value at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Within one year
After one year

through five years
After five years

through ten years After ten years Total carrying
(In thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Available for sale at fair value:
US Government sponsored entities $                     - - % $       - - % $ 2,110 2.50 % $   2,046 5.09 % $    4,156 3.76 %
State and political subdivisions - - - - - - 2,718 3.91 2,718 3.91
Mortgage-backed securities - - 1,479 3.73 14,652 4.24 93,448 5.09 109,579 4.97
Corporate debt securities - - - - - - 318 2.79 318 2.79
Other equities - - - - - - 577 0.31 577 0.31

Total securities available for sale $        - - % $ 1,479 3.73 % $ 16,762 4.02 %  $ 99,107 5.02 % $ 117,348 4.90 %
Held to maturity at cost:
US Government sponsored entities $       - -  % $ 2,000 5.00 % $ - - % $        - - % $    2,000 5.00 %
State and political subdivisions - - - -  - - 3,157 4.46 3,157 4.46
Mortgage-backed securities - - 1,430 4.54 7,608 4.81 16,412 5.13 25,450 5.00
Corporate debt securities    - - - - - - 1,554 6.35 1,554 3.65

Total securities held to maturity $        - - % $ 3,430 4.81 % $ 7,608 4.81 % $ 21,123 5.12 % $ 32,161 4.88 %

2008 2007

(In thousands)
Amortized 

Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Amortized 
Cost

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

Securities available for sale:
US Government sponsored entities $      4,132  $       27 $         (3) $      4,156 $    7,473  $    61 $       (18) $    7,516
State and political subdivisions 2,946 - (228) 2,718 2,945 - (34) 2,911
Mortgage-backed securities 109,630 992 (1,043) 109,579 47,242 157 (510) 46,889
Corporate debt securities 975 - (657) 318 3,973 - (416) 3,557
Other equities 639 - (62) 577 3,989 29 (36) 3,982

Total securities available for sale $  118,322 $  1,019 $  (1,993) $  117,348 $  65,622 $  247 $  (1,014) $  64,855
Securities held to maturity:
US Government sponsored entities $      2,000 $     119 $            - $      2,119 $    7,189 $    93 $            - $    7,282
State and political subdivisions 3,157 - (251) 2,906 3,159 13 (93) 3,079
Mortgage-backed securities 25,450 193 (880) 24,763 22,383 95 (208) 22,270

Corporate debt securities 1,554 - (1,254) 300 1,005 3 - 1,008
Total securities held to maturity $    32,161 $     312 $  (2,385) $    30,088 $  33,736 $  204 $     (301) $  33,639
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		 The fair value of securities with unrealized losses by length of time that the individual securities have been in a continu-
ous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Less than 12 months Greater than 12 months Total

(In thousands)
Estimated 
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Loss

Estimated 
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Loss

Estimated 
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Loss

2008
U.S. Government sponsored entities $       2,110 $               (3) $           11 $              - $       2,121 $           (3)
State and political subdivisions 5,624 (479) - - 5,624 (479)
Mortgage-backed securities 32,113 (1,024) 11,668 (899) 43,781 (1,923)
Corporate debt securities - - 618 (1,911) 618 (1,911)

Other equities 82 (34) 472 (28) 554 (62)
Total temporarily impaired investments $  39,929 $   (1,540) $  12,769 $  (2,838) $  52,698 $  (4,378)

2007
U.S. Government sponsored entities $       112 $                - $       5,094 $        (18) $       5,206 $          (18)
State and political subdivisions 3,035 (107) 1,270 (20) 4,305 (127)
Mortgage-backed securities 9,569 (77) 35,827 (641) 45,396 (718)
Corporate debt securities 3,558 (416) - - 3,558 (416)

Other equities -    - 559 (36) 559 (36)
Total temporarily impaired investments $  16,274 $ (600) $ 42,750 $ (715) $ 59,024 $ (1,315)

		 The table on the previous page provides the remaining 
contractual maturities and yields of securities within the 
investment portfolios.  The carrying value of securities at 
December 31, 2008 is primarily distributed by contractual 
maturity.  Mortgage-backed securities and other securities, 
which may have principal prepayment provisions, are distrib-
uted based on contractual maturity.  Expected maturities 
will differ materially from contractual maturities as a result 
of early prepayments and calls.  The total weighted average 
yield excludes equity securities.
	 In 2008 and 2007, gross realized gains on sales of 
securities amounted to $91 thousand and $49 thousand, 
while gross realized losses amounted to $469 thousand 
and $13 thousand, respectively. The net of these amounts 
is included in noninterest income in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income as securities (losses) gains.  The 
gross losses in 2008 are attributed to the Company 
selling approximately $2.1 million in book value of callable 
Freddie Mac perpetual preferred securities during the year, 
resulting in a pretax loss of approximately $469 thousand 
on the sales.  This loss was partially offset by $91 thousand 
in gross gains on other sales for a net security loss of 
$378 thousand in 2008.   During 2007, the Company’s net 
realized gains on the sales of securities were $36 thousand. 
	 Also included in noninterest income are other-than-
temporary impairment (“OTTI”) charges of $1.5 million 
and $607 thousand for 2008 and 2007, respectively.  OTTI 
charges on securities during 2008 included write-downs of 

approximately $1.2 million on three callable Freddie Mac 
perpetual preferred securities due to the decline in market 
value of these securities and the eventual placement of 
FHLMC in conservatorship that occurred in September of 
2008.  In addition, OTTI charges were taken on a pooled 
trust preferred security and two bank equities during the 
year.  During 2007, an OTTI charge of $607 thousand was 
recorded on the same callable FHLMC perpetual preferred 
securities, which the Company classified as impaired due 
to their decline in market value and the uncertainty that 
they would recover their $3.9 million book value within a 
reasonable period.   
	 Two securities with a market value of $1.9 million 
were transferred from available for sale to held to 
maturity during the third quarter of 2008, consistent 
with the Company’s intent and ability to hold these 
securities until maturity.  Unrealized losses at the date 
of transfer amounted to $1.1 million and continue to be 
reported in accumulated other comprehensive income, 
with amortization over the estimated remaining life of the 
securities.
	 Securities with a carrying value of $69.9 million and 
$62.0 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, 
were pledged to secure Government deposits, secure 
other borrowings and for other purposes required or 
permitted by law.  Included in these figures was $2.7 
million and $2.9 million pledged against Government 
deposits at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

	 Management evaluates securities for other-than-tempo-
rary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more fre-
quently when economic or market concern warrants such 
evaluation.  Consideration is given to (1) the length of time 
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than 
cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of 
the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to 

retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time suf-
ficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.  As 
of December 31, 2008, the number of securities in an un-
realized loss position in each category was as follows: three 
securities of U.S. Government sponsored entities, eighteen 
state and political subdivision securities, fifty-nine mortgage-
backed securities, three corporate debt securities, and four 
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other equity securities.  The unrealized losses in each of 
these categories are discussed in the paragraphs that follow.
	 U.S. Government sponsored entities and state and 
political subdivision securities:  The unrealized losses on 
investments in securities were caused by the increase in in-
terest rate spreads.  The contractual terms of these invest-
ments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at 
a price less than the par value of the investment.  Because 
the Company has the ability and intent to hold these in-
vestments until a market price recovery or maturity, these 
investments are not considered other-than-temporarily im-
paired.
	 Mortgage-backed securities:  The unrealized losses on 
investments in mortgage-backed securities were caused by 
interest rate increases.  The majority of contractual cash 
flows of these securities are guaranteed by Fannie Mae, 
Ginnie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Cor-
poration.  It is expected that the securities would not be 
settled at a price significantly less than the par value of the 
investment.  Because the decline in fair value is attributable 
to changes in interest rates and the current liquidity in the 
credit markets and not credit quality, and because the Com-
pany has the ability and intent to hold these investments 
until a market price recovery or maturity, these investments 
are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
	 Corporate debt securities:  The unrealized losses on 
corporate debt securities were caused by increases in inter-
est rate spreads.  The contractual terms of the bonds do 
not allow the securities to be settled at a price less than 
the par value of the investments.  The decline in face value 
is attributed to changes in interest rates and the current 
liquidity in the credit markets and not credit quality, and be-
cause the Company has the ability and intent to hold these 
investments until a market price recovery or maturity, these 
investments are not considered other-than-temporarily im-
paired.
	 Other equity securities:  Included in this category is 
stock of other financial institutions.  The unrealized losses 
on other equity securities are caused by decreases in the 
market prices of the shares.  The Company has the ability 
and intent to hold these shares until a market price recov-
ery; therefore these investments are not considered other-
than-temporarily impaired.

5.		 Loans

	 The composition of the loan portfolio, net of unearned 
discount and deferred loan origination fees and costs, at 
December 31 was as follows: 

(In thousands) 2008 2007
SBA held for sale $ 22,181 $    24,640
SBA held to maturity 83,127 68,875
SBA 504 76,802 72,145
Commercial 308,165 293,641
Residential mortgage 133,110 73,697

Consumer 62,561 57,134
Total loans $ 685,946 $ 590,132

	 SBA loans sold to others and serviced by the Company 
are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets.  The total amount of such loans serviced, but owned 
by outside investors, amounted to approximately $140.8 
million and $140.4 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the carrying 
value, which approximates fair value, of servicing rights was 
$1.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively.  The fair value of 
servicing rights was determined using a discount rate of 15 
percent, constant prepayment speeds ranging from 15 to 
18, and interest strip multiples ranging from 2.08 to 3.80, 
depending on each individual credit.  A summary of the 
changes in the related servicing asset for the past two years 
follows: 

Years ending December 31,
(In thousands) 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year $ 2,056 $ 2,294
SBA servicing rights capitalized 392 797
SBA changes in fair value (945) (1,035)

Provision for loss in fair value - -
Balance at end of year $ 1,503 $ 2,056

	 In addition, the Company had $1.7 million and $2.2 
million related to the retained portion of the unsold SBA 
loans at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  
	 As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Bank’s 
recorded investment in impaired loans, defined as 
nonaccrual loans, was $16.1 million and $5.5 million, 
respectively, and the related valuation allowance was $1.0 
million and $372 thousand at December 31, 2008 and 2007.  
This valuation allowance is included in the allowance for 
loan losses in the accompanying balance sheets.  Additional 
interest income that would have been recorded had these 
impaired loans performed under the original contract terms 
was $910 thousand and $475 thousand for 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  Interest income collected on these impaired 
loans totaled $44 thousand and $42 thousand for 2008 
and 2007, respectively.  Average impaired loans for 2008 
and 2007 were $7.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively.  
There were no loans restructured during 2008.  As of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were $2.5 million and 
$155 thousand in loans past due 90 or more days and still 
accruing interest, respectively. 
	 In the normal course of business, the Company may 
originate loan products whose terms could give rise to 
additional credit risk.  Interest-only loans, loans with high 
loan-to-value ratios, construction loans with payments 
made from interest reserves and multiple loans supported 
by the same collateral (e.g. home equity loans) are examples 
of such products.  However, these products are not material 
to the Company’s financial position and are closely managed 
via credit controls that mitigate their additional inherent 
risk.  Management does not believe that these products 
create a concentration of credit risk in the Company’s loan 
portfolio.
	 As of December 31, 2008, approximately 96 percent 
of the Company’s loans were secured by real estate.  A 
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portion of the Company’s SBA loans are located outside 
the Company’s lending area.  Approximately 11 percent 
of the Company’s total loan portfolio consists of loans 
to various unrelated and unaffiliated borrowers in the 
Hotel/Motel industry.  Such loans are collateralized by 
the underlying real property financed and/or partially 
guaranteed by the SBA.
	 As of December 31, 2008, residential mortgages 
provided $61.5 million in borrowing capacity at the Federal 
Home Loan Bank compared to $37.0 million at December 
31, 2007.
	 In the ordinary course of business, the Company may 
extend credit to officers, directors or their associates.  
These loans are subject to the Company’s normal lending 
policy.  An analysis of such loans, all of which are current as 
to principal and interest payments, is as follows:

(In thousands) 2008
Loans to officers, directors or their associates at

December 31, 2007 $ 16,326
New loans 2,940
Repayments (598)

Director retirement (592)
Loans to officers, directors or their associates at

December 31, 2008 $ 18,076

6.		 Allowance for Loan Losses &
		  Unfunded Loan Commitments

	 The allowance for loan losses is based on estimates.  
Ultimate losses may vary from current estimates.  These 
estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments 
become known, they are reflected in operations in the 
periods in which they become known.
	 An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan 
losses for the years 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year $     8,383 $    7,624

Provision charged to expense 4,500 1,550
12,883 9,174

Charge-offs 2,824 975

Recoveries 267 184
Net charge-offs 2,557 791
Balance at end of year $ 10,326 $     8,383

	 The Company maintains an allowance for unfunded 
loan commitments that is maintained at a level that 
management believes is adequate to absorb estimated 
probable losses.  Adjustments to the allowance are made 
through other expense and applied to the allowance which 
is maintained in other liabilities.  The commitment reserve 
was $105 thousand and $102 thousand at December 31, 
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

7.		 Premises and Equipment  

	 The detail of premises and equipment as of December 
31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Land and buildings $ 10,370 $ 9,658
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6,233 5,192
Leasehold improvements 2,343 2,628

Gross premises and equipment 18,946 17,478

Less:  Accumulated depreciation (6,366) (5,376)
Net premises and equipment $ 12,580 $ 12,102

	 Amounts charged to noninterest expense for 
depreciation of premises and equipment amounted to $1.2 
million in 2008 and $1.1 million in 2007. 
	 The Company currently accounts for all of its leases as 
operating leases.  In addition, the Company has one lease 
with a related party.  The Company leases its Clinton, New 
Jersey headquarters from a partnership in which two Board 
members, Messrs. D. Dallas and R. Dallas are partners. 
Under the lease for the facility, the partnership received 
aggregate rental payments of $553 thousand annually in 
2007 and 2008.  The Company believes that these rent 
payments reflect market rents and that the lease reflects 
terms that are comparable to those which could have been 
obtained in a lease with an unaffiliated third party.  The 
annual base rent under the lease is fixed until 2010.

8.	 Other Assets

	 The detail of other assets as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Deferred tax asset  $ 5,656 $ 3,939
Other real estate owned 710 106

Prepaid expenses 488 586
Net receivable due from SBA 290 388
Other 600 820
    Total other assets $ 7,744 $ 5,839
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9.		 Deposits

	 The following schedule details the maturity distribution of time deposits:

(In thousands)
3 months 

or less

More than 3
 through

6 months

More than 6 
through

12 months
More than
12 months Total

At December 31, 2008
$100,000 or more         $ 46,482       $ 19,679            $ 36,382  $   38,288 $ 140,831 
Less than $100,000 37,724          36,416           80,556    115,579 270,275 
At December 31, 2007
$100,000 or more  $  27,150           $  25,956            $  19,474    $    15,435 $      88,015 
Less than $100,000 44,533           41,190            40,992        41,529  168,244 

10.		 Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Debentures

	 The following tables present the period-end and average balances of borrowed funds and subordinated debentures for 
the last two years with resultant rates, as well as expected maturities over the next five years:

2008 2007
(In thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate
FHLB borrowings and repurchase agreements :

At December 31, $ 80,000 4.14% $ 75,000 4.39%
Year-to-date average $ 70,167 4.14% $ 51,889 4.29%
Maximum outstanding $ 90,000  $ 75,000

Repurchase agreements:
At December 31, $ 25,000 3.37% $ 10,000 2.91%
Year-to-date average $ 22,582 3.33% $ 10,795 3.01%
Maximum outstanding $ 25,000 $ 20,000

Subordinated debentures:
At December 31, $ 15,465 5.48% $ 15,465 6.63%
Year-to-date average $ 15,465 5.52% $ 22,278 7.74%
Maximum outstanding $ 15,465 $ 24,744

(In thousands) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
FHLB borrowings and repurchase agreements $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $   - $    - $   - $ 60,000
Repurchase agreements 10,000 - - - - 15,000
Subordinated debentures - - - - - 15,465
Total $ 20,000 $ 10,000 $   - $    - $   - $ 90,465
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FHLB Borrowings
	 The FHLB borrowings at December 31, 2008 and 
2007 consisted of four $10 million advances, three $10 
million repurchase agreements and overnight line of credit 
advances.  The terms of these transactions are as follows:

		 The $10 million FHLB overnight line of credit •	
advance issued on December 31, 2008, was at a 
rate of 0.44 percent and was repaid on January 2, 
2009.  	The $5 million FHLB overnight line of credit 
advance issued on December 31, 2007, was at a 
rate of 3.61 percent and was repaid on January 2, 
2008.

		 The FHLB advance that was issued on December •	
19, 2000 has a fixed rate of interest at 4.92 
percent, matures on December 20, 2010 and 
is callable quarterly on the 19th of March, June, 
September and December. 

		 The FHLB advance that was issued on April 27, •	
2005 has a fixed rate of 3.70 percent, matures on 
April 27, 2015 and is callable on April 27, 2008 and 
quarterly thereafter on the 27th of July, October, 
January and April. 

		 The FHLB advance that was issued on November •	
2, 2006 has a fixed rate of 4.025 percent, matures 
on November 2, 2016 and is callable on November 
2, 2007 and quarterly thereafter on the 2nd of 
February, May, August and November. 
The FHLB advance that was issued on August •	
10, 2007 has a fixed rate of 4.234%, matures on 
August 10, 2017 and is callable on August 10, 
2009 and quarterly thereafter on the 10th of 
November, February, May and August.

		 The FHLB repo-advance that was issued on •	
December 15, 2006 has a fixed rate of 4.13 
percent, matures on December 15, 2016 and is 
callable on December 15, 2008 and quarterly 
thereafter on the 15th of March, June, September 
and December.   
The FHLB repo-advance that was issued on April •	
5, 2007 has a fixed rate of 4.208%, matures on 
April 5, 2017 and is callable on April 5, 2009 and 
quarterly thereafter on the 5th of July, October, 
January and April. 
The FHLB repo-advance that was issued on •	
December 20, 2007 has a fixed rate of 3.337%, 
matures on December 20, 2017 and is callable 
on December 20, 2010 and quarterly thereafter 
on the 20th of March, June, September and 
December.

	 Due to the call provisions of these advances, the 
expected maturity could differ from the contractual 
maturity.

Repurchase Agreements
	 At December 31, 2008, the Company was a party in 
the following Repurchase Agreements:

	 A $10 million repurchase agreement that was •	
entered into in March 2004, has a term of 5 
years expiring on March 11, 2009, and a rate of 
2.78 percent.  The borrowing may be called by 
the issuer if the three-month London Inter-bank 
overnight rate (“LIBOR”) is greater than or equal 
to 7 percent.

	 A $15 million repurchase agreement that was •	
entered into in February 2008, has a term of 10 
years expiring on February 28, 2018, and a rate of 
3.67 percent.  The borrowing may be called by the 
issuer on the Repurchase Date of May 29, 2008 
and quarterly thereafter. 

Subordinated Debentures
	 At December 31, 2008, the Company was a party in 
the following subordinated debenture transactions:

   On July 24, 2006, Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust •	
II, a statutory business trust and wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Unity Bancorp, Inc., issued $10.0 
million of floating rate capital trust pass through 
securities to investors due on July 24, 2036. The 
subordinated debentures are redeemable in whole 
or part, prior to maturity but after July 24, 2011. 
The floating interest rate on the subordinated 
debentures is the three-month LIBOR plus 159 
basis points and reprices quarterly.  The floating 
interest rate at December 31, 2008 was 3.09 
percent and 6.47 percent at December 31, 2007.

   On December 19, 2006, Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust •	
III, a statutory business trust and wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Unity Bancorp, Inc., issued $5.0 
million of floating rate capital trust pass through 
securities to investors due on December 19, 2036. 
The subordinated debentures are redeemable 
in whole or part, prior to maturity but after 
December 19, 2011. The floating interest rate on 
the subordinated debentures is the three-month 
LIBOR plus 165 basis points and reprices quarterly.  
The floating interest rate at December 31, 2008 
was 3.83 percent and 6.77 percent at December 
31, 2007.

	 In connection with the formation of the statutory •	
business trusts, the trusts also issued $465 
thousand of common equity securities to the 
Company, which together with the proceeds stated 
above were used to purchase the subordinated 
debentures, under the same terms and conditions.

	 The Company has the ability to defer interest 
payments on the subordinated debentures for up to five 
years without being in default.
	 The capital securities in each of the above transactions 
have preference over the common securities with respect 
to liquidation and other distributions and qualify as 
Tier I capital.  In accordance with Financial Accounting 
Interpretation No.46, Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities, as revised December 2003, the Company does not 
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consolidate the accounts and related activity of Unity (NJ) 
Statutory Trust II and Unity (NJ) Statutory Trust III.  The 
additional capital from each of these transactions was used 
to bolster the Company’s capital ratios and for general 
corporate purposes, including among other things, capital 
contributions to Unity Bank.

11.		 Commitments and Contingencies  

Facility Lease Obligations
	 The Company operates sixteen branches, nine 
branches under operating leases, including its headquarters, 
and seven branches are owned.  In addition, the Company 
has a lease on one other location, which is subleased to 
a third party, with the third party paying rent in equal 
amounts as per the lease agreement between the Company 
and the lessor.  The leases’ contractual expiration range is 
generally between the years 2009 and 2013.  The following 
schedule summarizes the contractual rent payments for the 
future years.

(In thousands)
Operating Lease 
Rental Payments

Rent from 
Sublet 

Locations
Net Rent 

Obligation
2009 $ 1,179 $ 87 $ 1,092
2010 494 73 421
2011 410 - 410
2012 356 - 356
2013 344 - 344

Thereafter 137 - 137

	 Rent expense totaled $1.2 million for 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.
	 The Company currently accounts for all of its leases as 
operating leases.

Litigation 
	 The Company may, in the ordinary course of business, 
become a party to litigation involving collection matters, 
contract claims and other legal proceedings relating to 
the conduct of its business.  In the best judgment of 
management, based upon consultation with counsel, the 
consolidated financial position and results of operations 
of the Company will not be affected materially by the 
final outcome of any pending legal proceedings or other 
contingent liabilities and commitments.

Commitments to Borrowers 
	 Commitments to extend credit are legally binding 
loan commitments with set expiration dates.  They are 
intended to be disbursed, subject to certain conditions, 
upon the request of the borrower.  The Company was 
committed to advance approximately $111.9 million to its 
borrowers as of December 31, 2008, compared to $132.0 
million at December 31, 2007.  At December 31, 2008, 
$31.2 million of these commitments expire after one year, 
compared to $31.4 million a year earlier.  At December 

31, 2008, the Company had $4.5 million in standby letters 
of credit compared to $3.9 million in 2007.  The estimated 
fair value of these guarantees is not significant.  The 
Company believes it has the necessary liquidity to honor all 
commitments.  Many of these commitments will expire and 
never be funded. In addition, approximately 12 percent at 
December 31, 2008 and 25 percent at December 31, 2007, 
of these commitments are for SBA loans, which may be sold 
in the secondary market.

12.  Derivative Instruments and 	
	 Hedging Activities

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company has stand alone derivative financial 

instruments in the form of interest rate swap agreements, 
which derive their value from underlying interest rates.  
These transactions involve both credit and market 
risk.  The notional amounts are amounts on which 
calculations, payments, and the value of the derivatives are 
based.  Notional amounts do not represent direct credit 
exposures.  Direct credit exposure is limited to the net 
difference between the calculated amounts to be received 
and paid, if any.  Such difference, which represents the 
fair value of the derivative instruments, is reflected on 
the Company’s balance sheet as other assets and other 
liabilities.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in 
the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to 
these agreements.  The Company controls the credit risk 
of its financial contracts through credit approvals, limits 
and monitoring procedures, and does not expect any 
counterparties to fail their obligations.  The Company 
deals only with primary dealers.

Derivative instruments are generally either negotiated 
over the counter (“OTC”) contracts or standardized 
contracts executed on a recognized exchange.  Negotiated 
OTC derivative contracts are generally entered into 
between two counterparties that negotiate specific 
agreement terms, including the underlying instrument, 
amount, exercise prices and maturity.

Risk Management Policies – Hedging Instruments
The primary focus of the Company’s asset/liability 

management program is to monitor the sensitivity of the 
Company’s net portfolio value and net income under 
varying interest rate scenarios to take steps to control its 
risks.  On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates the 
effectiveness of entering into any derivative agreement by 
measuring the cost of such an agreement in relation to the 
reduction in net portfolio value and net income volatility 
within an assumed range of interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Management – Cash Flow 
Hedging Instruments

The Company has long-term variable rate debt as 
a source of funds for use in the Company’s lending and 
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investment activities and for other general business 
purposes.  These debt obligations expose the Company to 
variability in interest payments due to changes in interest 
rates.  If interest rates increase, interest expense increases.  
Conversely, if interest rates decrease, interest expense 
decreases.  Management believes it is prudent to limit 
the variability of a portion of its interest payments and, 
therefore, hedged a portion of its variable-rate interest 
payments.  To meet this objective, management entered 
into interest rate swap agreements whereby the Company 
receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed 
interest rate payments during the contract period.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007 the information 
pertaining to outstanding interest rate swap agreements 
used to hedge variable rate debt is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007
Notional amount $ 15,000 $ 10,000
Weighted average pay rate     4.05 %     4.10 %
Weighted average receive rate 3.22 %    4.88 %
Weighted average maturity in years 2.90     3.73
Unrealized loss relating to

interest rate swaps $ (1,013) $ (23)

These agreements provided for the Company to 
receive payments at a variable rate determined by a 
specific index (three-month LIBOR) in exchange for 
making payments at a fixed rate.

The unrealized loss relating to interest rate swaps was 
recorded as a derivative liability.  Changes in the fair value 
of interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments of 
the variability of cash flows associated with long-term debt 
are reported in other comprehensive income.  

13.		 Shareholders’ Equity

	 Shareholders’ equity increased $20.5 million to $67.8 
million at December 31, 2008 due to $1.9 million in net 
income, $20.6 million from the issuance of cumulative 
perpetual preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury, and $583 
thousand from the issuance of common stock under 
employee benefit plans, partially offset by a $1.3 million net 
unrealized loss in the available for sale securities portfolio, 
a $614 thousand net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge 
derivatives, $78 thousand in dividends accrued on preferred 
stock, and $675 thousand of dividends declared during 
2008.  The issuance of common stock under employee 
benefit plans includes nonqualified stock options and 
restricted stock expense, related entries, employee option 
exercises and the tax benefit of options exercised.
	 During the third quarter of 2008, the Company revised 
its cash dividend payment policy.  The decision was made 
based upon the current economic environment to retain 
capital so that the holding company can remain a source of 
strength to the subsidiary bank.  Previously, the Company 
had paid a quarterly cash dividend at a rate set by the 
Board based upon a number of factors.  The Board has now 

established a targeted dividend payout ratio of 20 percent 
of the Company’s earnings, subject to adjustment based 
upon factors existing at the time of the dividend and the 
Company’s projected capital needs.  The Board now intends 
to pay a cash dividend once annually, in the next succeeding 
year.  The Company declared two dividends in 2008 totaling 
$0.10.
	 On October 21, 2002, the Company authorized the 
repurchase of up 10 percent of its outstanding common 
stock.  The amount and timing of purchases will be 
dependent on a number of factors, including the price 
and availability of the Company’s shares, general market 
conditions and competing alternate uses of funds.  During 
2008, the Company did not repurchase any shares of its 
common stock.  As of December 31, 2008, the Company 
had repurchased a total of 556 thousand shares, of which 
131 thousand shares have been retired, leaving 153 
thousand shares remaining to be purchased under the plan.  
The Company has suspended its share repurchase program, 
as required by the U.S. Treasury’s Capital Purchase Plan.
	 On April 24, 2008, the Company announced a 5 
percent stock distribution payable on June 27, 2008 to 
shareholders of record as of June 13, 2008, and accordingly, 
all share amounts have been restated to include the effect 
of the distribution. 
	 On October 3, 2008, Congress passed the Emergency 
Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”), which 
provides the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with broad 
authority to implement certain actions to help restore 
stability and liquidity to the U.S. markets.  One of the 
provisions resulting from the EESA Act is the Treasury’s 
Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”) which provides direct 
equity investment of perpetual preferred stock by the U.S. 
Treasury in qualified financial institutions.   This program is 
voluntary and requires an institution to comply with several 
restrictions and provisions, including limits on executive 
compensation, stock redemptions, and declaration of 
dividends.  The U.S. Treasury may unilaterally amend the 
terms of this agreement.  The CPP provides for a minimum 
investment of 1 percent of risk-weighted assets, with a 
maximum investment of the lesser of 3 percent of risk-
weighted assets or $25.0 billion.  The perpetual preferred 
stock has a dividend rate of 5 percent per year until the 
fifth anniversary of the Treasury investment and a dividend 
of 9 percent thereafter.  These dividends are payable 
quarterly to the U.S. Treasury.  The preferred stock is 
callable after three years at par value.  The preferred stock 
ranks senior to the institution’s common stock in the 
event of liquidation.  The CPP also requires the Treasury to 
receive warrants for common stock equal to 15 percent 
of the capital invested by the U. S. Treasury.   The Company 
received an investment in perpetual preferred stock of 
$20.6 million on December 5, 2008.   These proceeds were 
allocated between the preferred stock and warrants based 
on relative fair value in accordance with APB Opinion No. 
14,  Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock 
Purchase Warrants.  The allocation of proceeds resulted in 
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a discount on the preferred stock that will be accreted 
over five years.  The Company issued 764,778 common 
stock warrants to the U.S. Treasury and $2.6 million of the 
proceeds were allocated to the warrants.  The warrants 
are accounted for as equity securities.  The warrants have 
a contractual life of ten years and have an exercise price of 
$4.05.

14.	 Other Income

	 The other income components for the years ended 
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Loan referral fees $     6 $ 233
ATM/Check card fees 243 224
Other 232 415
Total other income $ 481 $ 872
 

15.		 Other Expenses

	 The other expenses components for the years ended 
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Travel, entertainment, training and recruiting $    603 $    772 
Insurance 359 359
Director fees 308 302
Stationery and supplies 230 319
Reserve for commitments 3 (25)

Other 152 329
Total other expenses $ 1,655 $ 2,056

16.		 Income Taxes

	 The components of the provision for income taxes are 
as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007

Federal – current provision $ 2,004 $ 2,545
Federal – deferred benefit (884) (587)

Total Federal provision 1,120 1,958
State – current benefit (126) 126

State – deferred benefit (378) (106)
Total State provision (504) 20

Total provision for income taxes $ 616 $ 1,978

	 A reconciliation between the reported income taxes 
and the amount computed by multiplying income before 
taxes by the statutory Federal income tax rate is as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Federal income taxes at statutory rate $ 866 $ 2,279
(Decreases) increases resulting from:

Tax-exempt interest (90) (114)
Bank owned life insurance (71) (67)

Meals and entertainment 19 21
State income taxes, net of federal

income tax effect - 13
Other, net (108) (154)

Provision for income taxes $ 616 $ 1,978
Effective tax rate 24.2% 29.5%

	 Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary 
differences between the financial reporting basis and 
the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities.  The 
components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31, 
2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 4,056 $ 3,240
Reserve for impaired securities 637 243
Lost interest on nonaccrual loans 508 289
Net unrealized cash flow hedge losses 385 9
Net unrealized security losses 370 291
Stock-based compensation 202 182
Deferred compensation 114 96
Deferred servicing fee income 87 64
Other 107 108

Total deferred tax assets 6,466 4,522
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred loan costs 517 351
Goodwill 124 84
Bond accretion 84 89
Depreciation 81 -
Other 4 59

Total deferred tax liabilities 810  583
Net deferred tax asset $ 5,656 $ 3,939
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	 The Company computes deferred income taxes 
under the asset and liability method.  Deferred income 
taxes are recognized for tax consequences of  “temporary 
differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates to 
differences between the financial reporting and the tax 
basis of existing assets and liabilities.  A deferred tax liability 
is recognized for all temporary differences that will result in 
future taxable income.  A deferred tax asset is recognized 
for all temporary differences that will result in future tax 
deductions subject to reduction of the asset by a valuation 
allowance.
	 Included as a component of shareholders’ equity is an 
income tax expense (benefit) related to unrealized losses 
on securities available for sale of $(1.7) million and $(476) 
thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.  In addition, there 
is $(628) thousand and $(14) thousand related to cash flow 
hedges at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
	 The Company adopted FASB Interpretation 48 as 
of January 1, 2007.  The adoption did not have a material 
impact on the Company’s financial position or results of 
operation.  The Company did not recognize or accrue 
any interest or penalties related to income tax during the 
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  The Company 
does not have an accrual for uncertain tax positions as 
of December 31, 2008, as deductions taken and benefits 
accrued are based on widely understood administrative 
practices and procedures and are based on clear and 
unambiguous tax law.  Tax returns for all years 2005 
and thereafter are subject to future examination by tax 
authorities.

17.	 Net Income per Share

	 The following is a reconciliation of the calculation of 
basic and dilutive income per share.  All share amounts have 
been adjusted for the 5 percent stock distributions paid in 
2008 and 2007.  When computing net income per share, 
net income is reduced by the dividends on the cumulative 
perpetual preferred stock issued to the U.S. Treasury and 
the accretion of the discount on the preferred stock.  The 
reconciliation between reported net income and net 
income per share is shown below.

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2008 2007
Net income $ 1,930 $ 4,725
Less: Preferred stock dividends and

discount accretion     110         -
Income available to common shareholders $ 1,820 $ 4,725
Weighted average common shares

outstanding 7,097 7,245

Plus:  Potential dilutive common stock 152 282
Diluted average common shares outstanding 7,249 7,527
Net Income per share -

Basic $   0.26 $   0.65
Diluted $   0.25 $   0.63

	 Stock options for 389 thousand and 137 thousand 
shares were not considered in computing diluted earnings 
per share for 2008 and 2007, respectively, because they 
were antidilutive.  In addition, the 764,778 common stock 
warrants which were issued to the U.S. Treasury as part 
of the Capital Purchase Program were antidilutive at 
December 31, 2008.

18.		 Regulatory Capital

A significant measure of the strength of a financial 
institution is its capital base.  Federal regulators 
have classified and defined capital into the following 
components: (1) tier 1 capital, which includes tangible 
shareholders’ equity for common stock, qualifying 
preferred stock and certain qualifying hybrid instruments, 
and (2) tier 2 capital, which includes a portion of the 
allowance for loan losses, subject to limitations, certain 
qualifying long-term debt and preferred stock which 
does not qualify for tier 1 capital.  The parent company 
and its subsidiary bank are subject to various regulatory 
capital requirements administered by banking regulators.  
Quantitative measures of capital adequacy include the 
leverage ratio (tier 1 capital as a percentage of tangible 
assets), tier 1 risk-based capital ratio (tier 1 capital as a 
percent of risk-weighted assets) and total risk-based capital 
ratio (total risk-based capital as a percent of total risk-
weighted assets).    

Minimum capital levels are regulated by risk-based 
capital adequacy guidelines, which require the Company 
and the bank to maintain certain capital as a percentage 
of assets and certain off-balance sheet items adjusted 
for predefined credit risk factors (risk-adjusted assets).  
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate 
certain mandatory and possibly discretionary actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on the Company’s financial statements.  Under 
capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework 
for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet 
specific capital guidelines.  At a minimum, tier 1 capital 
as a percentage of risk-adjusted assets of 4 percent and 
combined tier 1 and tier 2 capital as a percentage of 
risk-adjusted assets of 8 percent must be maintained.  
In addition to the risk-based guidelines, regulators 
require that a bank, which meets the regulator’s highest 
performance and operation standards, maintain a minimum 
leverage ratio of 3 percent.  For those banks with higher 
levels of risk or that are experiencing or anticipating 
significant growth, the minimum leverage ratio will be 
proportionately increased.
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19.		 Employee Benefit Plans 

	 The Bank has a 401(k) savings plan covering 
substantially all employees.  Under the Plan, an employee 
can contribute up to 80 percent of their salary on a tax 
deferred basis.  The Bank may also make discretionary 
contributions to the Plan.  The Bank contributed $195 
thousand and $185 thousand to the Plan in 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  The Bank does not currently provide any 
other post retirement or post employment benefits to its 
employees other than the 401(k) plan.
	 The Company has incentive and nonqualified option 
plans, which allow for the grant of options to officers, 
employees and members of the Board of Directors.  In 
addition, restricted stock is issued under the stock bonus 
program to reward employees and directors and to retain 
them by distributing stock over a period of time.  
	 In the following paragraphs, all share amounts have 
been adjusted for the 5 percent stock distributions paid in 
2008 and 2007.

Stock Option Plans
	 Grants under the Company’s incentive and nonqualified 
option plans, generally vest over 3 years and must be 

exercised within 10 years of the date of the grant.  The 
exercise price of each option is the market price on the 
date of grant.  As of December 31, 2008, 1,520,529 shares 
have been reserved for issuance upon the exercise of 
options, 872,274 option grants are outstanding, 572,271 
option grants have been exercised, forfeited or expired, 
leaving 75,984 shares available for grant.  
	 The Company granted 149,263 and 108,978 options in 
2008 and 2007, respectively.  The fair value of the options 
granted during each period was estimated on the date of 
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the 
following weighted average assumptions:

2008 2007
Number of options granted 149,263 108,978
Weighted average exercise price $ 5.07 $ 10.46
Weighted average fair value of

options $ 1.43 $ 3.06

Expected life (years) 4.03 5.15
Expected volatility 44.74 % 33.34 %
Risk-free interest rate 1.63 % 4.41 %
Dividend yield 2.55 % 1.92 %

	 The Company’s capital amounts and ratios for each of the last two years are presented in the following table. 

Actual
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes

To Be Well-Capitalized 
Under Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions
(In thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2008
Leverage ratio $ 83,671 9.54% ≥ $ 35,071 4.00% ≥ $ 43,839 N/A
Tier I risk-based capital ratio $ 83,671 12.02% ≥ $ 27,846 4.00% ≥ $ 41,769 N/A
Total risk-based capital ratio $ 92,394 13.27% ≥ $ 55,692 8.00% ≥ $ 69,616 N/A
As of December 31, 2007
Leverage ratio $ 61,157 8.25% ≥ $ 29,654 4.00% ≥ $ 37,067 N/A
Tier I risk-based capital ratio $ 61,157 9.81% ≥ $ 24,947 4.00% ≥ $ 37,421 N/A
Total risk-based capital ratio $ 68,962 11.06% ≥ $ 49,895 8.00% ≥ $ 62,369 N/A
			 

	 The Bank’s capital amounts and ratios for the last two years are presented in the following table. 

Actual
For Capital Adequacy

Purposes

To Be Well-Capitalized 
Under Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions
(In thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2008
Leverage ratio $ 69,049 7.88% ≥ $ 35,043 4.00% ≥ $ 43,804 5.00%
Tier I risk-based capital ratio $ 69,049  9.93% ≥ $ 27,806 4.00% ≥ $ 41,709 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio $ 86,259 12.41% ≥ $ 55,612 8.00% ≥ $ 69,514 10.00%
As of December 31, 2007
Leverage ratio $ 52,249 7.06% ≥ $ 29,617 4.00% ≥ $ 37,021 5.00%
Tier I risk-based capital ratio $ 52,249  8.39% ≥ $ 24,919 4.00% ≥ $ 37,378 6.00%
Total risk-based capital ratio $ 68,545 11.00% ≥ $ 49,837 8.00% ≥ $ 62,297 10.00%
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	 The expected life of the options was estimated 
based on historical employee behavior and represents 
the period of time that options granted are expected 
to be outstanding.  Expected volatility of the Company’s 
stock price was based on the historical volatility over 
the period commensurate with the expected life of the 
options.  The risk-free interest rate is the U.S. Treasury rate 
commensurate with the expected life of the options on the 
date of grant.  The expected dividend yield is the projected 
annual yield based on the grant date stock price.

	 Statement 123R requires that the fair value of equity 
awards be recognized as compensation expense over 
the period during which an employee is required to 
provide service in exchange for such an award (vesting 
period).  Compensation expense related to stock options 
totaled $150 thousand and $112 thousand in 2008 and 
2007, respectively.  The related income tax benefit was 
approximately $61 thousand and $46 thousand in 2008 and 
2007, respectively.  
	 Transactions under the Company’s stock option plans 
for the last two years are summarized as follows:

Shares

Weighted 
Average
Exercise 

Price

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual Life 

(in years)

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 

Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 804,971 $ 5.52 5.3 $ 6,304,483
     Options granted 108,978    10.46
     Options exercised (135,285) 4.63
     Options forfeited (9,217) 11.93
     Options expired (3,393) 11.72
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 766,054 $ 6.28 5.2 $ 1,981,902
     Options granted 149,263 5.07
     Options exercised (536) 5.04
     Options forfeited (10,236) 10.08
     Options expired (32,271)  8.48
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 872,274 $ 5.94 5.0 $ 252,815
Exercisable at December 31, 2008 652,267 $ 5.62 3.6 $ 245,615

	 As of December 31, 2008, unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested share-based compensation 
arrangements granted under the Company’s stock incentive plans totaled approximately $329 thousand.  That cost is 
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.

	 The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2008:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

Shares 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual Life 

(in years)

Weighted 
Average

Exercise Price 
Shares 

Exercisable

Weighted 
Average

Exercise Price
  $ 0.00 -   4.00 359,927 3.9 $  3.20 287,927 $  3.04

  4.01 -   8.00 277,254 5.9  5.75 175,316 5.34
  8.01 - 12.00 155,758 4.6  9.17 155,391 9.16
12.01 - 16.00  79,335 7.8 12.75   33,633 12.83

Total 872,274 5.0 $  5.94 652,267 $  5.62
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The following table presents information about options 
exercised:

2008 2007
Number of options exercised 536 135,285
Total intrinsic value of options exercised $ 1,094 $ 834,950
Cash received from options exercised 2,703 625,736
Tax deduction realized from options

exercised 438 169,574

	 Upon exercise, the Company issues shares from its 
authorized but unissued, common stock to satisfy the 
options.

Restricted Stock Awards
	 Restricted stock awards granted to date vest over 
a period of 4 years and are recognized as compensation 
to the recipient over the vesting period.  The awards are 
recorded at fair market value and amortized into salary 
expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period.  

	 Restricted stock awards granted during the past two 
years include: 

Grant Year Shares Average Grant Date Fair Value
2008 22,600 $  6.28

2007 19,549 $ 12.55

  	 Compensation expense related to the restricted 
stock awards totaled $198 thousand in 2008 and $180 
thousand in 2007.   As of December 31, 2008, there 
was approximately $345 thousand of unrecognized 
compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock 
awards granted under the Company’s stock incentive plans.  
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted 
average period of 2.2 years.
	 As of December 31, 2008, 121,551 shares of restricted 
stock were reserved for issuance, of which 74,998 shares 
are outstanding, 2,045 shares were issued and 44,508 shares 
are available for grant.

	 The following table summarizes nonvested restricted stock activity for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008:

Shares Average Grant Date Fair Value
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2007  44,614 $ 12.30

Granted 22,600 6.28
Vested (13,900) 12.14
Forfeited (2,890) 10.46

Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2008 50,424 $  9.76



51

20.		 Fair Value of Financial
			   Instruments

Fair Value Measurement
	 SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that 
would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date.  In 
determining fair value, the Company uses various methods 
including market, income and cost approaches.  Based 
on these approaches, the Company often utilizes certain 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing 
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk 
and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation 
technique.  These inputs can be readily observable, market 
corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs.  The 
Company utilizes techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable 
inputs.  Based on the observability of the inputs used in 
valuation techniques, the Company is required to provide 
the information according to the fair value hierarchy.  The 
fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the 
information used to determine fair values.  Financial assets 
and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and 
disclosed as follows:
 
Level 1 Inputs

	 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that •	
are accessible at the measurement date for identi-
cal, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

	 Generally, this includes debt and equity securi-•	
ties and derivative contracts that are traded in 
an active exchange market (i.e. New York Stock 
Exchange), as well as certain U.S. Treasury, U.S. 
Government and agency mortgage-backed securi-
ties that are highly liquid and are actively traded in 
over-the-counter markets.

 
Level 2 Inputs

	 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in •	
active markets.

	 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or •	
liabilities in inactive markets.

	 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observ-•	
able, either directly or indirectly, for the term 
of the asset or liability (i.e., interest rates, yield 
curves, credit risks, prepayment speeds or volatili-
ties) or “market corroborated inputs.”

	 Generally, this includes U.S. Government and •	
agency mortgage-backed securities, corporate 
debt securities, derivative contracts and loans held 
for sale. 

Level 3 Inputs
	 Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs •	

that are both unobservable (i.e. supported by little 
or no market activity) and that are significant to 
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

	 These assets and liabilities include financial instru-•	
ments whose value is determined using pricing 
models, discounted cash flow methodologies, 
or similar techniques, as well as instruments for 
which the determination of fair value requires sig-
nificant management judgment or estimation.

Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
	 The following is a description of the valuation 
methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value:

Securities Available for Sale 
	 The fair value of available for sale securities is the 
market value based on quoted market prices, when 
available, or market prices provided by recognized broker 
dealers.  If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair 
value is based upon quoted market prices for similar or 
identical assets or other observable inputs (Level 2) or 
externally developed models that use unobservable inputs 
due to limited or no market activity of the instrument 
(Level 3).

SBA Servicing Rights
	 SBA servicing rights do not trade in an active, open 
market with readily observable prices.  The Company 
estimates the fair value of SBA servicing rights using 
discounted cash flow models incorporating numerous 
assumptions from the perspective of a market participant 
including market discount rates and prepayment 
speeds.  The fair value of SBA servicing rights as of 
December 31, 2008 was determined using a discount rate 
of 15 percent, constant prepayment rates of 15 to 18 
CPR, and interest strip multiples ranging from 2.08 to 3.80, 
depending on each individual credit.  Due to the nature of 
the valuation inputs, SBA servicing rights are classified as 
Level 3 assets.
 
Interest Rate Swap Agreements
	 Based on the complex nature of interest rate swap 
agreements, the markets these instruments trade in are 
not as efficient and are less liquid than that of Level 1 
markets.  These markets do, however, have comparable, 
observable inputs in which an alternative pricing source 
values these assets or liabilities in order to arrive at a fair 
value.  The fair values of our interest swaps are measured 
based on the difference between the yield on the existing 
swaps and the yield on current swaps in the market (i.e. 
The Yield Book); consequently, they are classified as Level 
2 instruments.
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	 The changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized as follows:

(In thousands)  
Securities

Available for Sale   SBA Servicing Assets
Beginning balance January 1, 2008 $  2,711   $  2,056
    Total net gains (losses) included in:       
        Net income -   -
        Other comprehensive income (851)   -
    Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net -   (553)
    Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 (1,860)     -
Ending balance December 31, 2008 $        -   $ 1,503
 
There were no gains and losses (realized and unrealized) included in earnings for assets and liabilities held at December 
31, 2008.

Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
	 Certain assets and liabilities are not measured at fair 
value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value 
adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when 
there is evidence of impairment).  The following table 

presents the assets and liabilities carried on the balance 
sheet by caption and by level within the FAS 157 hierarchy 
as of December 31, 2008, for which a nonrecurring change 
in fair value has been recorded during the twelve months 
ended December 31, 2008.

 

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2   Level 3   Total   
Total fair value loss during year 

ended December 31, 2008
Financial Assets:                 
SBA loans held for sale $ - $  22,733 $               -   $ 22,733   $       -

Impaired loans $ -  $            -    $  10,326    $ 10,326    $  643

SBA Loans Held for Sale
	 The fair value of SBA loans held for sale was 
determined using a market approach that includes 
significant other observable inputs (Level 2 Inputs).  The 
Level 2 fair values were estimated using quoted prices for 
similar assets in active markets.
 
Impaired Loans
		  The fair value of impaired collateral dependent loans 
is derived in accordance with SFAS No. 114, Accounting by 

Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.  Fair value is determined 
based on the loan’s observable market price or the fair 
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. 
	  The valuation allowance for impaired loans is included 
in the allowance for loan losses in the consolidated balance 
sheets.  The valuation allowance for impaired loans at 
December 31, 2008 was $1.0 million.  During the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2008, the valuation allowance 
for impaired loans increased $643 thousand from $372 
thousand at December 31, 2007.

	 The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

(In thousands)    Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total
Financial Assets:                
Securities available for sale   $ 38,915   $ 78,433   $ -   $ 117,348
SBA servicing assets       -       -     1,503     1,503

Total     38,915      78,433     1,503     118,851

                          
Financial Liabilities:                         
Interest rate swap agreements     -     1,013       -     1,013

Total    $  -    $  1,013    $  -    $  1,013
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments (SFAS 107 
Disclosure)
	 SFAS 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments (“SFAS 107”), requires the disclosure of the 
estimated fair value of financial instruments, including those 
financial instruments for which the Company did not elect 
the fair value option. The methodology for estimating the 
fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured 
on a recurring or nonrecurring basis are discussed above.
	 The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair value of other financial instruments for 
which it is practicable to estimate that value. 

Cash and Federal Funds Sold
	 For these short-term instruments, the carrying value is 
a reasonable estimate of fair value. 

Securities
	 The fair value of securities is determined in the manner 
previously discussed above.

Loans
	 The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the 
future cash flows using current market rates that reflect the 
credit, collateral and interest rate risk inherent in the loan, 
except for previously discussed impaired loans.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
	 Federal Home Loan Bank stock is carried at cost. 

Deposit Liabilities
	 The fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts 
is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.  
The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit 
is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using 
current market rates.

Borrowed Funds & Subordinated Debentures
	 The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting 
the projected future cash flows using current market rates.

Accrued Interest
	 The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate 
fair value.

Standby Letters of Credit
	 At December 31, 2008, the Bank had standby letters 
of credit outstanding of $4.5 million, as compared to $3.9 
million at December 31, 2007.  The fair value of these 
commitments is nominal. 

	 The table below presents the estimated fair values of 
the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 
2008 and 2007:

2008 2007

(In thousands)

Carrying

 Amount

Estimated

 Fair Value

Carrying

 Amount

Estimated 

Fair Value
Financial assets:

Cash and Federal funds sold $   34,431 $   34,431 $   36,312 $  36,312
Securities available for sale 117,348 117,348 64,855 64,855
Securities held to maturity 32,161 30,088 33,736 33,639
Loans, net of allowance for possible loan losses 675,620 696,966 581,749 581,502

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 4,857 4,857 4,395 4,395
SBA servicing assets 1,503 1,503 2,056 2,056
Accrued interest receivable 4,712 4,712 3,994 3,994

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 707,117 706,475 601,268 589,607
Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 120,465 130,217 100,465 101,898

Accrued interest payable 805 805 635 635
Interest rate swap agreements 1,013 1,013 23 23
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Statements of Cash Flows December 31, 
(In thousands) 2008 2007
Operating Activities:
Net income $  1,930 $  4,725
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary (2,071) (5,002)
Losses (gains) on sales of securities available for sale 66 (22)
Decrease in other assets - 62
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 98 (421)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 23 (658)
Investing Activities:

Sales and maturities of securities available for sale 13 108
Purchases of securities available for sale - (59)
Dividend from Bank 725 1,000

Repayment of Capital Note to Bank - 6,000
Net cash provided by investing activities 738 7,049
Financing Activities:

Redemption of subordinated debentures - (9,000)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 18,032 -
Capital issued to Bank (15,000) -
Warrants issued to U.S. Treasury 2,617 -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 260 1,119
Purchase of common stock, net - (3,927)
Cash dividends on common stock (1,009) (1,022)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,900 (12,830)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,661  (6,439)
Cash, beginning of year 433 6,872
Cash, end of year $  6,094 $       433
Supplemental disclosures:  Interest paid $      869  $  1,690  

21.		 Condensed Financial Statements
			   of Unity Bancorp, Inc. 
			   (Parent Company Only)

Balance Sheets December 31,

(In thousands) 2008 2007
Assets:
Cash $   6,094 $      433
Securities available for sale 94 216

Capital note due from Bank 8,500 8,500
Investment in subsidiaries 68,810 53,366
Other assets 862 469

Total Assets $ 84,360 $ 62,984
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity:
Other liabilities $   1,092 $     259
Other borrowings 15,465 15,465
Shareholders’ Equity 67,803 47,260

Total Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity $ 84,360 $ 62,984

Statements of Income December 31, 
(In thousands) 2008 2007
Interest income $     764 $  1,321
Interest expense 867 1,724
Net interest expense (103) (403)

Net security (losses) gains (66) 22
Other expenses 40 39
Loss before income tax benefit and equity

in undistributed income of subsidiary
(209) (420)

Income tax benefit (68) (143)
Loss before equity in undistributed income

of subsidiary
(141) (277)

Equity in undistributed net income of
subsidiary

2,071 5,002

Net income $  1,930 $  4,725
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22.		 Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(In thousands) 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities Pretax Tax After-tax 
Balance at December 31, 2006 $  - $  - $ (824)

Unrealized holding gains on securities arising during the period (8) 24 (32)
Less:  Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income (571) (191) (380)
Net unrealized gains on securities arising during the period 563 215 348 

Balance at December 31, 2007     $ (476)
Unrealized holding losses on securities arising during the period (3,248) (720) (2,528)
Less:  Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income (1,918) (642) (1,276)
Net unrealized losses on securities arising during the period (1,330) (78) (1,252)

Balance at December 31, 2008     $ (1,728)

Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges Pretax Tax After-tax
Balance at December 31, 2006 $   - $  - $  -

Unrealized holding losses arising during the period (23) (9) (14)
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ (14)

Unrealized holding losses arising during the period (991) (377) (614)
Balance at December 31, 2008 $  (628)

	 Two securities with a market value of $1.9 million were transferred from the available for sale category to held to 
maturity during the third quarter of 2008, consistent with the Company’s intent and ability to hold these securities until 
maturity.  Unrealized losses at the date of transfer amounted to $1.1 million and continue to be reported in accumulated 
other comprehensive income, with amortization over the estimated remaining life of the securities. 



56

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

	 The following quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 is unaudited.  	However, 
in the opinion of management, all adjustments, which include normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the 
results of operations for the periods, are reflected.  

(In thousands, except per share data)
2008 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Total interest income $  12,635 $  12,267 $  12,965 $  12,898
Total interest expense 6,000 5,429 5,883 6,162

Net interest income 6,635 6,838 7,082 6,736
Provision for loan losses 450 650 2,100 1,300
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,185 6,188 4,982 5,436
Total noninterest income 1,455 1,028 (344) 555
Total noninterest expense 5,770 5,617 5,779 5,773
Net income before tax 1,870 1,599 (1,141) 218
Income tax provision 626 495 (139) (366)

Net income 1,244 1,104 (1,002) 584
Basic income per common share $      0.18 $      0.16 $     (0.14) $      0.07
Diluted income per common share $      0.17 $      0.15 $     (0.14) $      0.07

(In thousands, except per share data)
2007 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Total interest income $  11,702 $  11,975 $  12,566 $  12,657
Total interest expense 5,683 5,888 6,593 6,310

Net interest income 6,019 6,087 5,973 6,347
Provision for loan losses 200 350 450 550
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 5,819 5,737 5,523 5,797
Total noninterest income 1,679 1,748 1,460 1,053
Total noninterest expense 5,417 5,267 5,501 5,928
Net income before tax 2,081 2,218 1,482 922
Income tax provision 630 676 430 242

Net income 1,451 1,542 1,052 680
Basic income per common share $      0.20 $      0.21 $       0.15 $      0.10
Diluted income per common share $      0.19 $      0.20 $       0.14 $      0.09
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data

At or for the years ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Selected Results of Operations
 Interest income $    50,765 $    48,900 $    43,177 $    33,837 $    26,166
 Interest expense 23,474 24,474 19,432 11,603 7,008
 Net interest income 27,291 24,426 23,745 22,234 19,158
 Provision for loan losses 4,500 1,550 1,550 1,850 1,175
 Noninterest income 2,694 5,940 7,638 8,190 7,629
 Noninterest expense 22,939 22,113 21,045 18,676 17,230
 Provision for income taxes 616 1,978 2,943 3,688 3,052
 Net income 1,930 4,725 5,845 6,210 5,330

Per Share Data
 Net income per common share (basic) $0.26 $0.65  $0.81  $0.88  $0.76

 Net income per common share (diluted) 0.25 0.63 0.77 0.83 0.71
 Book value per common share 6.99 6.70 6.34 5.68 5.10
 Market value per common share 3.90 8.10 13.34 12.10 10.53
 Cash dividends declared on common shares 0.10 0.19 0.18 0.16 0.12

Selected Balance Sheet Data
 Assets $  898,310 $  752,196 $  694,106 $  614,172 $  515,417
 Loans 685,946 590,132 507,690 448,567 373,580
 Allowance for loan losses 10,326 8,383 7,624 6,892 5,856
 Securities 149,509 98,591 105,457 104,160 100,357
 Deposits 707,117 601,268 566,465 521,860 433,898
 Borrowed funds and subordinated debentures 120,465 100,465 79,744 49,279 44,279
 Shareholders’ equity 67,803 47,260 46,228 40,929 35,868
 Common shares outstanding 7,119 7,063 7,296 7,206 7,023

Performance Ratios
 Return on average assets 0.23 % 0.66 % 0.90 % 1.10 % 1.10 %
 Return on average equity 3.72 10.11    13.56    16.29     16.32
 Efficiency ratio 71.90 71.48    67.21    61.53    64.51
 Net interest spread 3.13 3.07      3.33      3.74     3.77
 Net interest margin 3.51 3.62      3.87      4.17     4.18

Asset Quality Ratios
 Allowance for loan losses to loans 1.51 % 1.42 % 1.50 % 1.54 % 1.57 %
 Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 64.06 153.49  85.58  158.04   143.14
 Nonperforming loans to total loans 2.35 0.93     1.75     0.97     1.10
 Nonperforming assets to total loans and OREO 2.45 0.94     1.80     1.01     1.19
 Net charge-offs to average loans 0.40 0.14     0.17     0.20     0.19

Capital Ratios – Company
 Leverage ratio 9.54 % 8.25 % 9.08 % 8.27 % 9.09 %
 Tier I risk-based capital ratio  12.02  9.81    10.80     9.98    11.14
 Total risk-based capital ratio 13.27 11.06    13.60   11.23   12.39

Capital Ratios – Bank
 Leverage ratio 7.88 % 7.06 % 7.20 % 7.01 % 7.53 %
 Tier I risk-based capital ratio  9.93  8.39     8.55     8.51      9.22
 Total risk-based capital ratio 12.41 11.00    12.38   10.97    11.95

All share amounts have been adjusted for the 5% stock distributions paid on June 27, 2008, June 29, 2007, June 30, 2006, June 30, 2005, and June 30, 
2004.

(In thousands)
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Corporate Information

Unity Bancorp, Inc.

Company Headquarters
Unity Bancorp, Inc.
64 Old Highway 22
Clinton, New Jersey 08809

Counsel
Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorf, LLP
New Brunswick, New Jersey

Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Blue Bell, Pennsylvania

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Shareholder address changes or inquiries regarding 
shareholder accounts and stock transfers should be 
directed to:
Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016-3572
800.866.1340

Investor and Media Inquiries
Analysts, institutional investors, individual shareholders and 
media representatives should contact:
Alan J. Bedner, CFO
Unity Bancorp, Inc.
64 Old Highway 22
Clinton, New Jersey 08809
alan.bedner@unitybank.com

Web Information
Information on financial results, products, services, and 
branch locations is available on the Internet at: 
unitybank.com or by email at: info@unitybank.com.

Financial Information
Copies of the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission may be 
obtained from:
Alan J. Bedner, CFO
Unity Bancorp, Inc.
64 Old Highway 22
Clinton, New Jersey 08809
alan.bedner@unitybank.com

An electronic copy is available through the SEC’s home 
page at www.sec.gov.

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
Shareholders are cordially invited to the Annual Meeting 
of Shareholders. The meeting will convene at 3:00 pm, 
Thursday, April 23, 2009, at The Grand Colonial, Hampton, 
New Jersey.

Stock Listing
Unity Bancorp, Inc. common stock is traded on the 
NASDAQ under the symbol “UNTY”.

Common Stock Prices
The table below sets forth by quarter the range of high, 
low and quarter-end closing sale prices for Unity Bancorp, 
Inc.’s common stock.

Quarter High Low Close Cash Dividend 
Declared

2008
Fourth $   4.85 $ 2.81 $  3.90 $      -
Third 6.95 4.00 4.00 -
Second 8.00 6.48 6.95 0.05
First 9.25 7.50 7.85 0.05

2007
Fourth $ 10.78 $ 6.95 $  8.10 $ 0.05
Third 11.23 9.28 10.55 0.05
Second 11.43 10.74 10.90 0.05
First 13.85 10.98 11.30 0.04

Amounts have been adjusted for the 5% stock distributions paid in 2008 and 2007.

As of March 1, 2009 there were 495 holders of Unity Bancorp, Inc.’s common stock.
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Unity Bancorp, Inc. is a publicly traded company on the NASDAQ. 
Look for the stock ticker symbol UNTY.

Learn more at unitybank.com/shareholder_relations.asp
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